

## **Oracle® Documaker**

# Mobile

**User Guide** 

12.6.3

Part number: F28172-01 March 2020



Copyright © 2020, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

The Programs (which include both the software and documentation) contain proprietary information; they are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are also protected by copyright, patent, and other intellectual and industrial property laws. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of the Programs, except to the extent required to obtain interoperability with other independently created software or as specified by law, is prohibited.

The information contained in this document is subject to change without notice. If you find any problems in the documentation, please report them to us in writing. This document is not warranted to be error-free. Except as may be expressly permitted in your license agreement for these Programs, no part of these Programs may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose.

If the Programs are delivered to the United States Government or anyone licensing or using the Programs on behalf of the United States Government, the following notice is applicable:

#### **U.S. GOVERNMENT RIGHTS**

Programs, software, databases, and related documentation and technical data delivered to U.S. Government customers are "commercial computer software" or "commercial technical data" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the Programs, including documentation and technical data, shall be subject to the licensing restrictions set forth in the applicable Oracle license agreement, and, to the extent applicable, the additional rights set forth in FAR 52.227-19, Commercial Computer Software--Restricted Rights (June 1987). Oracle USA, Inc., 500 Oracle Parkway, Redwood City, CA 94065.

The Programs are not intended for use in any nuclear, aviation, mass transit, medical, or other inherently dangerous applications. It shall be the licensee's responsibility to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy and other measures to ensure the safe use of such applications if the Programs are used for such purposes, and we disclaim liability for any damages caused by such use of the Programs.

The Programs may provide links to Web sites and access to content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle is not responsible for the availability of, or any content provided on, third-party Web sites. You bear all risks associated with the use of such content. If you choose to purchase any products or services from a third party, the relationship is directly between you and the third party. Oracle is not responsible for: (a) the quality of third-party products or services; or (b) fulfilling any of the terms of the agreement with the third party, including delivery of products or services and warranty obligations related to purchased products or services. Oracle is not responsible for any loss or damage of any sort that you may incur from dealing with any third party.

Oracle, JD Edwards, and PeopleSoft are registered trademarks of Oracle Corporation and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

# CONTENTS

Preface	5
Audience	5
Reference Documents	5
Conventions	6
Documentation Accessibility	6
Customer Support	6
Contact	7
Oracle Documaker Mobile Overview	8
Understanding Mobile	11
Understanding Mobile Processing	12
Snippets	13
Understanding Snippet Keywords	22
Creating a Cascading Style Sheet	27
Choosing the Right Mobile Output Format	27
Delivering Mobile Output	29
Mobile Output Process	30
Mobile Output Management Workflow	35
Configuring and Enabling Mobile	37
Configuring Mobile for Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition	38
Validating Documaker Mobile Installation	39
Configuring Mobile for Oracle Documaker Standard Edition	41
Validating Documaker Mobile Installation	42
Best Practices	44
Troubleshooting	45
Layout and Design	47
Layout Example	48
Mockup Design for Mobile	48
Navigation	49
Content Data based Interactions	50
XSLT Techniques	51

Mobile Responsive Output Format	54
Mobile Document Authoring Tools	57
Adobe's Dreamweaver	57
Oracle JDeveloper	59
Eclipse's IDE for Java EE Developers	61
Notepad++	64
Microsoft's Expression	64
Packaging and Deployment of Mobile	65
References	66
Mobilizing Existing Formsets	68

### **Preface**

The purpose of this document is to provide a high level overview supported by step by step instructions to configure and use Oracle Documaker Mobile (ODM). This document also provides guidance on the mobile implementation process for Documaker with information on how to develop mobile content.

### **AUDIENCE**

This document is intended for those who will utilize Oracle Documaker Mobile to create a web presentation of documents generated by the Documaker system. Oracle Documaker Mobile provides an ability to generate the type of responsive output required by today's mobile landscape. Readers of this document are:

- Documaker Document Authors
- Mobile Document Authors- web designer, web author
- Development Managers
- Quality Assurance Managers
- IT / Infrastructure Managers
- Senior Management

### **REFERENCE DOCUMENTS**

Refer to the following documents for information on steps to install and maintain Oracle Documaker Mobile:

- Documaker Mobile Installation Guide
- Documaker Word Add In Help
- Documaker Studio User Guide and Online Help
- Documaker System Requirements Guide
- Documaker Administrator Help
- Documaker Enterprise Administration Guide
- Documaker Output Management Guide
- DAL Reference
- INI Reference

To view and download the latest Oracle Documaker Mobile documentation, visit the Oracle Technology Network:

http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/documentation/insurance-097481.html

### **CONVENTIONS**

The following text conventions are used in this document:

Convention	Description
bold	Indicates information you enter.
italic	Italic type indicates book titles, emphasis, or placeholder variables for which you supply particular values.
monospace	Monospace type indicates commands, URLs, code in examples, and text that appears on the screen.

### Tips, Notes, and Warnings

- A *Tip* provides a better way to use the software.
- A *Note* contains special information and reminders.
- A *Warning* contains critical information that if ignored, may cause errors or result in the loss of information.

### **DOCUMENTATION ACCESSIBILITY**

# Accessibility of Links to External Web Sites in Documentation

This documentation may contain links to Web sites of other companies or organizations that Oracle does not own or control. Oracle neither evaluates nor makes any representations regarding the accessibility of these Web sites.

### **CUSTOMER SUPPORT**

If you have any questions about the installation or use of our products, please call +1.800.223.1711 or visit the My Oracle Support web site:

### http://www.oracle.com/us/support/index.html.

Go to My Oracle Support to find answers in the Oracle Support Knowledge Base, submit, update or review your Service Requests, engage the My Oracle Support Community, download software updates, and tap into Oracle proactive support tools and best practices. Hearing impaired customers in the U.S. who need to speak with an Oracle Support representative may use a telecommunications relay service (TRS); information about TRS is available at http://www.fcc.gov/cgb/consumerfacts/trs.html, and a list of phone numbers is available at http://www.fcc.gov/cgb/dro/trsphonebk.html. International hearing impaired customers should use the TRS at 1.605.224.1837.

### CONTACT

USA:+1.800.223.1711

Canada: 1.800.668.8921 or +1.905.890.6690

Latin America: 877.767.2253

For other regions including Latin America, Europe, Middle East, Africa, and Asia Pacific regions: Visit- http://www.oracle.com/us/support/contact/index.html.

### Follow us



https://blogs.oracle.com/insurance





https://twitter.com/oraclefs

in https://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid=2271161

### **Chapter 1**

## **Oracle Documaker Mobile Overview**

Documaker Mobile allows businesses to utilize the same content created for paperstyle output for responsive, device aware, mobile delivery. Documaker Mobile provides the ability to render output for iOS, Android, laptop, and desktop devices by leveraging existing Documaker capabilities including content, triggers, and data mapping.

Businesses have traditionally delivered complex documents to their customers using print delivery or electronic versions of that same printed output. Consumers are demanding more interactive documents that are searchable, easy to navigate, and responsive to their reading device including smaller mobile devices such as phones and tablets.

With Documaker Mobile you can:

- Provide mobile context to existing content
- Reformat print page-styled content into mobile device responsive HTML
- Reformat print page-styled content into XML that can be transformed with industry standard mobile device responsive style-sheets

Documaker Mobile enables content from Documaker to be formatted as device responsive HTML5 and in other in UTF-8 based text formats such as Extensible Markup Language (XML) or Comma Separated Values (CSV), XHTML, JSON, etc. and enables user defined data schemas to define the output nomenclature.

Oracle Documaker Mobile produces output in a format easily targeted for use on mobile devices. Traditionally Documaker has provided high fidelity output that is device independent. This ensures that regardless of output target (printer or PDF) the recipients will receive the exact content, structure, and layout defined in Documaker. Documaker Mobile does not follow a print page fidelity paradigm as other output targets have in the past. The output from Documaker Mobile diverges from the printed format and varies its presentation depending on the (mobile) device that it is viewed on. This type of output is known as responsive because it responds by restructuring its presentation to support the device on which it is being viewed. The objective is for the Documaker Mobile output to be mobile device responsive by supporting features such as changing presentation styles depending on the size of the viewport of the device on which the presentation is being viewed. Documaker Mobile output is a merge of the formset content as triggered for a transaction through Documaker with specially prepared files for mobile such as XML snippets, XSL style sheets, CSS style sheets, JavaScript files, etc. Documaker Mobile is responsible for performing the merger of Documaker formset content with a set of mobile definitions to produce mobile targeted results based on rules defined in Documaker Studio.

Documaker Mobile repurposes the hard earned content knowledge embedded in your legacy paper based publishing systems with state-of-the-art support for web based mobile document publishing.

To know more about the operating system and infrastructure software which is needed to run Oracle Documaker Mobile See Oracle Documaker System Requirements guide section "Oracle Documaker Mobile".

A high level view is presented here.



### **User Roles and Responsibilities**

Generating documents relies on someone to draft the content of the output sent to customers. This activity is typically done by users of Documaker Studio, Word, InDesign, or other content tools that allow these users to identify the content, variable information, and intended document recipients. Individuals responsible for developing the document content may also be referred as template designers, business analysts, or various other terms but for purposes of this document, they are called **Document Authors**. There is an additional role introduced with Documaker Mobile and that is the role of the **Mobile Author**, who designs, develops, and implements the output intended for a mobile user. The Mobile Author works with the mobile strategy team to identify a content layout for optimal user experience on mobile devices.

### **Mobile Author**

To implement a mobile strategy for document output, the Mobile Author designs and develops output intended for a web or mobile user. This user plays the role of a web user interface developer and should be skilled in the following:

- Web based technologies and tools such as Adobe's Dreamweaver, Eclipse Foundation's IDE for Java EE Developers, Notepad++ or other tools for manipulating text based syntax conforming to Web Standards.
- Ability to implement web pages via HTML/HTML5, CSS/CSS3, JavaScript and other Standards based technologies such as XML and XSLT.
- Experience in developing Single Page Architecture (SPA) based interactive web pages.
- An understanding of the company's existing web standards that can be used to leverage Web assets a company already has in place, including style standards and methodologies for securely distributing content to customers over the Web including knowledge about company Web portals.

The company that implements a mobile strategy with Documaker must also pull in dedicated representatives from their Web group or source these resources from within their group so the output from Documaker can be designed to work with the Web presence already established. If no Web presence is already in place Oracle offers tools such as WebCenter Sites and Portal that provide a complete tool set for creating and managing Web presence.

### Chapter 2

# **Understanding Mobile**

This chapter provides detailed information on the architecture and processing capabilities of Oracle Documaker Mobile.

This chapter discusses the following topics:

- Understanding Mobile Processing on page 12
- Snippets on page 13

### **UNDERSTANDING MOBILE PROCESSING**

Oracle Documaker Mobile provides the ability to render output for devices such as iOS, Android, and laptops. It does so by leveraging the existing capabilities in Documaker to define content, triggers, and data mapping elements while adding in new elements that allow Documaker to render output for various device targets, including mobile, instead of page based targets such as print or PDF.

These new elements, snippets, scripts, widgets, etc., combined with the document content provide the responsive user experience.

Documaker Mobile processes each object of document content through a snippet



file. The snippet, or layout file, contains presentation markup and keywords that are replaced by the properties and values of the document content being processed. For example - each field in the document content will be processed with the field snippet designed to output the name of the field, the font used for the field, and the value populated into the field using keywords as shown here:

<FLD N="documaker.name" F="documaker.font.id">documaker.text</FLD>

When a field in the document content is processed through this snippet by the Mobile Responsive Output (MRO), all the snippet content is written as output and the keywords, also known as replacement tags, such as: "documaker.name", "documaker.font.id" and "documaker.text". These will be replaced with field's name, font ID and content text respectively. By default, similar snippets are defined for objects other than fields and the output from Documaker Mobile represents processing of all objects within the document via this snippet transformation technique. Note that the format of the final mobile output is dependent upon the snippets used to process the document content. Once the mobile output is ready, it can be delivered to the recipient through one of many channels. Mobile output can be placed / stored on a file system, pushed to the Oracle WebCenter product or to other targets such as FTP, or returned to a calling application using Documaker Enterprise's DWS web service interfaces. For more information about possible delivery options, see the topic on *Delivering Mobile Output*.



As discussed in the overview, generating mobile output relies on the contents of snippet files to determine the final output format. Let's take a closer examination of how snippets are used by the system.

### **SNIPPETS**

A snippet is a programming term for a small file of re-usable text or source logic written to allow substitution of variables. Snippets are generally small files written with a text editor or program source code editors.

Mobile output processing begins by loading a "master" snippet that directs the output process. Each object included by the output generation has a default snippet that is named for that particular object type. For example, text area uses "textarea.xml" as the default snippet name. Fields use "field.xml" as the default snippet name. Sections use "section.xml" as the default snippet name. See the table below for a full list.

While the Documaker Mobile installer includes both xml and json snippets, Documaker Mobile assumes snippet files have an .xml extension. If you will be using snippets with a .json extension to produce mobile output, set the SnippetExt to .json in the <PrtType:MRO> configuration group as shown below:

<PRTTYPE:MRO> SnippetExt = .JSON The following table identifies the default snippet name associated with objects that might be included in mobile responsive output. All snippet names are required to be lowercase file names.

Snippet Name (without extension)	Object Type Using That Snippet
master	The controlling snippet that drives the process and directs the layout of the responsive output. This snippet is assumed related to the entire document.
group	Forms Lists, also know as "Line of Business", "Form Groups" or references to KEY2 or KEY3
form	Forms (.FOR)
page	Pages
section	Sections
box	Box, line, and shaded areas defined within sections
bitmap	Graphic bitmaps and logos
textarea	Text Areas
stext	Text Labels, also sometimes referred to as "static text". This object snippet is also used for individual text elements found within text areas.
field	Fields that are not barcode or multiline text fields. May also be used for barcode and multiline fields if a specific snippet is not available for those objects.
field_barcode	Fields that are barcode type
field_textarea	Fields that are multiline text fields
barcode	Barcodes
font	Fonts
note	<ul> <li>Note objects where the type is sticky note</li> <li>note_bookmark - bookmark notes</li> <li>note_memo - note objects where the type is memo</li> </ul>
mtformat	End of paragraph marks found within textareas
chart	Charts <b>Note:</b> The axis values will be output only for chart text labels that have names beginning with POINTAXIS or SCALEAXIS. The label's text value should be set to the content you wish to display on the chart.
vector	Vectors
signature	Signatures
table	Tables (Note that components within a table will reference other object snippets like textarea and stext.

### **Default Snippets**

By default, the Documaker mobile solution provides object level snippets and stylesheets for rendering content for mobile use. However, these resources are meant to only provide a generic mobile enabled solution that is not designed for use as final output within a company's mobile strategy. It is up to the company to build upon the snippets provided to achieve the look and feel desired for mobile documents.

### **Overriding Snippets with Custom Definitions**

To support the use of non-default snippets, the Documaker author can directly update the default snippets provided, thus changing the snippets used for all documents, or they can override the default definitions on a document per document basis, using context tags. See the *Customizing Mobile Output with Context Tag and Omit Properties* topic for more information on using context tags.

### **Snippet Contents**

Documaker's Mobile installer includes both XML and JSON snippets. MRO assumes snippet files have an extension of .xml. Should you want to produce JSON mobile output, set the SnippetExt setting to .json in the <PrtType: MRO> configuration group. However, exactly what a snippet contains depends on what type of object is referenced by the snippet, the intended output format, and the desired behavior. Documaker does not validate the content of the snippet, it only looks for variable replacement tags to replace with content from the transaction being processed. For more information on the variable replacements or supported keywords, see the topic *Understanding Snippet Keywords*.

### **Snippet Location**

All snippets used by a given MRL will be found in the same location defined within the MasterResource INI group option MROLIB, as shown here:

<MasterResource>

MROLIB=

MasterResouce settings option can be redirected to the CONFIG group that controls other MRL options.

### **Master Snippet**

Each mobile generation begins by looking for the master snippet. The master can be thought of as the shell that drives the mobile transformation process. The master snippet name for XML snippets is 'master.xml'. The master snippet name for JSON snippets is 'master.json'.

The master snippet must also be located in the location defined by the MROLIB= option within the MasterResource group – as are all other snippets.

Information will be presented to show that you can have multiple master snippets to drive the mobile transformation process for different situations. See *Global Context Tag* for more information.

### **Object Specific Snippets**

The default snippets provided with Documaker Mobile demonstrate a hierarchy of object processing to help you understand the sequence of processing content that follows from the master snippet. The following diagram shows the layers of objects within the system as it relates to the provided snippets.



In the default output there is a DocSet element which serves as the document root and contains Groups. Groups have Forms. Forms have Pages. Pages have Sections. Sections have low level contents that include all the publishing objects in the section in reading order including text content, field content, images, tables, charts and all other publishing objects available.

In the default snippets the Page layer is omitted. If you want to have pages in your output, you can change your Form snippet to list Pages instead of Sections. This will cause Pages to be inserted into your Mobile output.

# Customizing Mobile Output with Context Tag and Omit Properties

An object property can be used to define a tag that will be appended to the default snippet name for the object, generating a "custom" named snippet for that particular object.

Within Documaker Studio and the Microsoft Word Add-In, each object that may be included in mobile output has two new properties available for use: Omit and Context.

TRAININGCOMPANY	Form List Options	Form List Options	
N 🗶 🕆 🕸	💊 💥 🕸 🕆 🖒 🗲 🕄 🥘		
TRAININGCOMPANY_0000100002	0002		
Automobile	Unit 1	TrainingCompany	
CA	Unit 2	Automobile	
	Unit 3	CA	
	File Name	TrainingCompany_Automobile_CA	
	Extract Dictionary Override		
	Exclude from user selection		
	Omit		
	Context		
	Global Context Tag		
	Also Known As	0	

The Context property is used to define a value you wish to append to the default snippet name and thereby generate a "custom" snippet name to use for this particular object. For example, the field object by default will look for a snippet with the name "field.xml". If you associated a tag of "green" on a particular field object, this would expect to locate a snippet with the name "field\_green.xml". Any field not specifying a context tag will continue to look for the normal "field.xml". See details below on Snippet Search Behavior for more information.

The Omit check box is used to suppress a particular object from being included in the responsive output. Depending upon the exact nature of the desired output, it may not be necessary to include an object. For instance, when generating a responsive HTML output, you may wish to suppress certain boxes or large graphics that may not format in the desired output or cause that output to become overly large; therefore the object's Omit property can be enabled. In addition, Omit might be used to suppress certain sensitive field or text information that you don't want to include when output in a given format might be considered a security risk in a mobile landscape. Omitting an object does not omit embedded objects within that object.For example, omitting a text area does not omit embedded fields, boxes or graphics within the text area. You must also omit the field, box or graphic itself.

### **Application-wide Context Tags For User Selection**

A predefined list of context tags can be defined for user selection within Documaker Studio and the Word Add-In. These are defined and maintained in the Application Definition (BDF).

When Oracle Documaker Mobile is installed in your development environment, a new tab appears in the same area as the Category and Transactions tabs. This tab is called Context Tags.



The Description property of the Context option is simply to associate some descriptive text to assist the Document Author in choosing the correct context. Note, since the tag name ultimately becomes part of the file name for the snippet, the Context tag name follows file naming restrictions. Therefore, the characters : //> < ? \* cannot be used in the name field. Characters with ASCII scan codes lower than 32 or higher than 127 are also not permitted. Uppercase letters will be lowercased. A name with all spaces is not valid. The Context Tag list simply holds those tags that you would like the Document Author to be able to select when creating content. It is possible to assign security restrictions to users that will force selection from this list or to allow users to create a custom tag not defined in the Application Definition.

The application defined Context Tag list is also included in the Workspace Definition file Studio creates and that is consumed by Word Add-in users. See below for an example of the file contents.

- <Definition Name="Alamere" TimeStamp="2014-10-10 12:06:14" Version="12.4">
- + <DALTriggers>
- <ContextTags>
- <ContextTag Name="tag1"> <Description>Mobile tag 1</Description> </ContextTag>
- <ContextTag Name="tag2"> <Description>Mobile tag 2</Description> </ContextTag>
- <ContextTag Name="tag3">
  - <Description>Mobile tag 3</Description>
- </ContextTag>
- </ContextTags>
- <Recipients>

### Security option for choosing from available tags

A security setting determines if a user is required to select from the application defined context tag list. This is similar to other security attributes that determine whether a user is limited to choosing predefined fields, triggers, and templates. The context tag restriction attribute can be found on the User Rights page of the Security Wizard.

When checked, that user is only allowed to select from the predefined tag list specified by the application definition. Users without this rights restriction are allowed to define a mobile context tag not defined within the application list. The default restriction attribute for a new user is not selected, but if the user is created based on another user, this property will be carried forward.

In the drop-down selection box the user sees the available tags as well as the descriptions defined for each. Only the selected tag name appears in the actual control after selection. The description is not maintained in the individual object property.

### **Snippet Search Behavior**

As mentioned, each object type that can be included in mobile responsive output has a default snippet named for that type of object. As identified in the previous section, you may customize a snippet for a given object for any reason where the output for that particular object should be different than other similar objects of the same 'type' - i.e. fields, sections, forms. The custom snippet is named starting with default snippet name for that object and followed with an underscore and appended with additional text.

When a snippet name contains underscores, the mobile output generation will attempt multiple searches looking first for more highly qualified snippet names and working back to less qualified snippet names until a snippet with that name is found. For instance, in the snippet name reference table (shown earlier) you will find that fields of a barcode type expect to use the default snippet name "field\_barcode.xml". If a file with that name is not found, the search will continue and look for "field.xml". A new search attempt will occur at each underscore, reversing through the names until a matching snippet file is found.

For example, if starting with a snippet name of "object\_one\_two\_three\_four.xml", the following names will be searched for order until one was found.

- object\_one\_two\_three\_four.xml
- object\_one\_two\_three.xml
- object\_one\_two.xml
- object\_one.xml
- object.xml

This is an important behavior to note since objects allow for the definition of a mobile tag to be appended to the names. If the custom snippet name is not found, the system will then continue parsing backwards until eventually the default snippet name is used.

Remember a previous example where a field defined a mobile context tag "green", when that particular field object is output the first attempt will be to locate a snippet with the name "field\_green.xml". If that is not found, then the name "field.xml" (the default for fields) will be used. If that field happened to have been a barcode type, the first search would have been to look for "field\_barcode\_green.xml". If that file is not found, then "field\_barcode.xml" will be next. If that is not found, then simply "field.xml" will be used.

If a snippet of a given name is not located, this is not considered an error. As a default, a warning message will be output that takes the following form where the name of the missing snippet and its extension is listed as shown:

#### Unable to open file snippetname.ext

This warning message causes no harm and will generally only be output once per run. A subsequent reference to the same file will simply shortcut to the name that was eventually used for that object snippet request. You can suppress the output messages if desired by using this INI option within the Mobile options group defining the responsive output.

<PRTTYPE:MRO>
Verbose = No

As mentioned, the default is Yes, and messages will be generated when snippets of a given name are not found.

### **Global Context Tag**

It is possible to assign a global context tag to a document on its application definition. When a global context tag is defined, all objects will first look for the associated snippet with the global tag appended to the name, just as if the context tag had been set on each and every instance of an object being evaluated.

For example, if a global context tag "claim" is assigned at the transaction level, then a search for a field's snippet will first look for "field\_claim.xml". This occurs even through the field did not specify a mobile context.

In fact, if the field does have a custom mobile context tag defined, that tag is still added into the initial search name with the global tag appended at the end. Returning to an earlier example where a field defines a mobile tag "green", assume that field is part of a transaction that defines a global tag "claim". The first snippet name searched for this field will be "field\_green\_claim.xml". (Remember, that snippet searches iterate by shortening the name at each underscore until a snippet is found.)

This global context tag feature is to be used in situations where it is desirable to generate customized output for a given transactions.

This different output can start with the master snippet. The global context tag defined for a document will also apply to determining the master snippet name. This means if a transaction has "claim" assigned as the global context tag, the initial master snippet searched for will be "master\_claim.xml". (Just as any other snippet search, if this name is not found, then the "master.xml" will be searched next.) Since the master snippet drives the start of the mobile generation, having a global tag modify the master snippet name offers the ability to generate customized by doing things such as referencing different style sheets or other layout resources not used in the normal output case.

Although the global context tag is first appended to all object snippet searches, there is no requirement that you have a custom snippet for every object. The normal snippet search method will continue looking for a snippet by truncating the name at the underscores. You need only define custom snippets for those objects that require custom output for that tag, which very often will just be the master snippet.

### Assigning a Global Context Tag to a Transaction Document

A global context tag can be defined for particular lines of business or Key1/Key2 combinations in the application definition (BDF). Within the definition of the Forms Lists options for a Key1/Key2 combination, you will see an additional option in the Mobile properties. The Global Context Tag is not the same as the Context tag defined for any other object - seen here just above this option.



Remember, a Mobile Context tag definition only applies to the given object at run time. Conversely a Global Context Tag defines a tag that will be applied to every object, including the master snippet, when generating output for the entire transaction.

The Global Context Tag is associated with the document via the normal triggering or key selection process. The first Forms List assigned to the transaction will have its Global Context Tag setup to the document level.

If multiple Forms Lists are included in a transaction document, only the first Forms List definition determines the Global Context Tag for the document.

Alternatively, it is possible to assign a document Global Context Tag without defining the tag within the Forms List options of the Application Definition. Instead, you can use a DAL script to assign or override this document level (Global) tag. You just have to ensure the script is executed prior to the start of mobile responsive output generation.

### **DAL Functions for Global Context Tag Support**

Two DAL functions are available that determine or assign the document Global Context Tag. These new functions appear under the Miscellaneous grouping in the Trigger Manager Keyword List.

**GetGlobalMROTag()** - This function can be used to obtain the value of the Global Context Tag that is assigned to the transaction. There are no parameters expected. Usage in a script must pick up the return value or else a runtime syntax error will be generated.

Example:

Tag = GetGlobalMROTag()
If (Tag = "")
// No tag assigned yet

The Global Context Tag determines the initial snippet names used by mobile responsive output (MRO). If a tag is defined, then it is assumed that the transaction will attempt to use specific snippet names before reverting to defaults.

**SetGlobalMROTag( tag )** - This function assigns the given parameter string as the Global Context Tag associated with the active transaction document. There is one expected parameter which is assumed to be a string that defines the Global Context Tag to assign.

Example:

SetGlobalMROTag("claim")

Using this function will override any previously assigned Global Context Tag assigned to the document whether assigned implicitly via the triggering process or by previous script assignment. If you pass an empty string to this function, example: Passing an empty string to the SetGlobalMROTag function, for example, SetGlobalMRLTag(""), is the equivalent of removing the documents assigned Global Context Tag and allows the mobile responsive generation to use normal defaults for all snippet references.

### **UNDERSTANDING SNIPPET KEYWORDS**

As discussed, snippet files include keywords to pull the values of object properties and data and write those values into the mobile output. The table below shows variable tag replacement keywords available within the system, what they are used for, and where they may be used. The target use is not necessarily limited but keep in mind that not all keywords make sense to use in all snippets. If a keyword does not have meaning for the particular object but is used in the object's snippet, the mobile output will display the keyword.

Special note on keyword processing, A keyword followed by two periods (..) indicates the end of a keyword. This syntax is required when you want to append the result of a keyword with other text without an intervening space. For example, suppose you place something like this in your snippet:

src ="documaker.bitmap.filename...jpg"

Notice in this case that although there are three periods in a row, the keyword processing stops at the second period. Since the keyword is followed by two periods in sequence, these will be stripped from the output and the remainder of the line will stay intact. So in this example if the bitmap has the filename of "alamere", the result written from snippet will be src="alamere.jpg". Note that the period in the snippet output is actually the third one in the snippet definition above.

Here is another example, Suppose you wish to append an object's name content together with the suffix "MAIN".

documaker.nameMAIN - results in unknown keyword results in no output.

Without a space, this looks like a single keyword and will be misinterpreted. With a space between the keyword and suffix, the space is maintained but you still do not end up with the desired results:

docmaker.nameMAIN - this unknown keyword results in no output, which is not the desired result.

A single period will be misintepreted as a keyword (as in documaker.name.MAIN) since we allow single periods between the words in keywords. Therefore, use two periods to indicate the end of a keyword as in this example:

documaker.name..MAIN results in "ObjectNameMAIN" with no spacing.

Finally, note that this double-period method is only required when you are trying to append the keyword to text that is alphanumeric and/or a period. Any other non alpha character will not be included in the keyword and would be assumed as text.

For example, documaker.name+MAIN will result in "ObjectName+MAIN" as the plus-sign is not alphanumeric or a period and is considered normal text.

Keyword	Description	Default Snippet	Target Use
documaker.groups	Process through each group within the formset and then when processing execute the default snippet or the named context snippet	group.xml	master.xml
documaker.forms	Process through each form within the formset and then when processing execute the default snippet or the named context snippet	form.xml	group.xml master.xml
documaker.pages	Process through each page within the formset and then when processing execute the default snippet or the named context snippet	page.xml	form.xml group.xml master.xml
documaker.sections	Process through each section within the formset and then when processing execute the default snippet or the named context snippet	section.xml	form.xml group.xml master.xml page.xml
documaker.section.type	The section type attribute indicates the type of the section being used. Returned values are either: Group Begin, Group End, Subform Begin, Subform End, Subform, or Placeholder. If no value is returned, the section listed is a standard section in the form.	section.xml	section.xml or where processing section contents
documaker.recip	Output the name of the recipient for the current generation of output.	n/a	Any (usually master.xml)
documaker.fonts	Process through each font used within the formset and then when processing execute the default snippet or the named context snippet	font.xml	master.xml
documaker.fields	Process through each field within the formset and then when processing execute the default snippet or the named context snippet	field.xml	section.xml page.xml form.xml group.xml master.xml

Keyword	Description	Default Snippet	Target Use
documaker.field.type	Output the field type as an abbreviated word string.	n/a	field.xml
documaker.field.length	Output the defined field entry length.	n/a	field.xml
documaker.field.disponly	Will return 1 if the field attribute for display only is set. Otherwise 0 is returned.	n/a	field.xml
documaker.field.required	Will return 1 if the field attribute for required is set. Otherwise 0 is returned.	n/a	field.xml
documaker.name	Used within an object level snippet, returns the name of the object	n/a	Any
documaker.description	Used with any object snippet that allows the object to define a description.	n/a	master.xml form.xml field.xml and any other object that can define a description.
documaker.descname	If the object has a description attribute, it is returned. If it the description is empty or undefined, the name of the object is returned. The theory is that if you are building a list of descriptive results, you might want the item's name if it did not have any other description defined.	n/a	Any
documaker.name.parent	This will return the name of the parent that controls the object being processed by the snippet. For instance, Stext elements often will not have names, so the documaker.name keyword would return no value. However since a text element generally "belongs" to a section or is defined within a text area, the documaker.name.parent keyword will return that parent name. This will make it possible to find all similar objects with the same parent name.	n/a	Any
documaker.name.section	This will return the name section that contains the object being processed. If you include this keyword at an object level above sections – like page or form – no value will be returned. If you include this keyword in a section snippet, the result is the same response as the documaker.name keyword.	n/a	Any object snippet descendant descendant to a section.
documaker.name.form	This will return the name form that contains the object being processed. If you include this keyword at an object level above forms – like group or formset – no value will be returned. If you include this keyword in a section snippet, the result is the same response as the documaker.name keyword.	n/a	Any object snippet descendant to a form.
documaker.name.group	This will return the name forms list grouping that contains the object being processed. If you include this keyword at an object level above groups – like formset– no value will be returned. If you include this keyword in a group snippet, the result is the same response as the documaker.name keyword.	n/a	Any object snippet descendant to a group.
documaker.text	Used within an object level snippet, returns the text content of the object	n/a	field.xml stext.xml note.xml, note_memo.xml, note_bookmark.xml
documaker.base64	Used within a bitmap, barcode, or vector object level snippet, returns the a base-64 encoded bitmap representation of the object	n/a	bitmap.xml barcode.xml
documaker.font.id	Used within an object level snippet, returns the font ID of the object.	n/a	font.xml Any object snippet descendant to a section that utilizes a font.
documaker.font.style	Used within an object level snippet, returns the font style name of the font associated with that object.	n/a	font.xml Any object snippet descendant to a section that utilizes a font.
documaker.font.weight	Used within an object level snippet, returns the font weight of the font associated with that object.	n/a	font.xml Any object snippet descendant to a section that utilizes a font.
documaker.bitmaps	Iterate and output each bitmap/logo on a section by utilizing the bitmap snippet.	bitmap.xml	section.xml
documaker.bitmap.filename	Output the filename associated with the bitmap object.		bitmap.xml

Keyword	Description	Default Snippet	Target Use
documaker.charts	Iterate and output each chart on a section by utilizing the chart snippet.	chart.xml	section.xml
documaker.chart.id	Returns an ID comprised of the chart name plus a sequence to make unique. The name should be compatible as an HTML/XML entity name with illegal characters changed to underscore.	n/a	chart.xml
documaker.chart.json.v1	JSON (tree) of chart attributes and data contents.	n/a	chart.xml
documaker.chart.json.v1.escaped	This will return the same data as the documaker.table.json.v1 except that HTML character entity replacements will be performed on the data. Where regular JSON data might appear as this: "Description": "My description here", The keyword will result in this output. "Description": "My description here",	n/a	chart.xml
documaker.tables	Iteration of tables calling related snippet.	table.xml	section.xml
documaker.table.json.v1	JSON (tree) of table attributes and cell contents	n/a	table.xml
documaker.table.json.v1.escaped	This will return the same data as the documaker.chart.json.v1 except that HTML character entity replacements will be performed on the data. Where regular JSON data might appear as this: "Title": "My Chart here", The keyword will result in this output. ",Title": ",My Chart here",	n/a	table.xml
documaker.contents	Processes through all of the objects in the object being processed by the snippet. For example, if called from the documaker.section snippet, processes through all of the objects on the section and calls the default snippet for each object accordingly.	Any descendant snippet from page or section	page.xml section.xml
documaker.stexts	Process through each independent stext or text labels within the formset (or within the particular object being processed)_ and ignore the text elements within a text area.	stext.xml	section.xml
documaker.textareas	Process through each text area and output their contents by calling the snippets associated with the children contained within. So a text area output will use the same stext snippet for text elements that was utilized for individual stext snippets.	textarea.xml	section.xml
documaker.id	Returns a unique ID/name for the object. Replaces all invalid characters with an underscore and makes each ID unique by adding an _# where # is a sequence value.	n/a	Any
documaker.version	Returns the Documaker version and build number as a string of text.	n/a	master.xml
documaker.height	Returns the height (in FAP units) of the object currently being addressed.	n/a	Any object snippet descendant to a form where the object has a height.
documaker.width	Returns the width (in FAP units) of the object currently being addressed.	n/a	Any object snippet descendant to a form where the object has a width.
documaker.color	Returns the color of the object currently being addressed. The color is expressed as a 6-digit hexadecimal value of the form #000000.	n/a	Any snippet utilized by an object that defines a color attribute.
documaker.alttext	Returns any accessibility alternate text string associated with object that can define such. The alternate text is meant to be used by reader applications for objects that might not be text objects.	n/a	Any snippet utilized by an object that defines alternate text.
documaker.skipread	Returns 1 for objects that define the accessibility attribute for skip reading. This is used by reader applications to know not to read anything related to this object.	n/a	Any snippet utilized by an object that defines the skip reading attribute. section.xml

Keyword	Description	Default Snippet	Target Use
documaker.memo.date	The date associated with the note memo	n/a	note_memo.xml, note.xm
documaker.memo.to	The recipient line associated with the note memo	n/a	note_memo.xml, note.xml
documaker.memo.from	The sender line associated with the note memo.	n/a	note_memo.xml, note.xml
documaker.memo.subject	The subject line associated with the note memo	n/a	note_memo.xml, note.xml
documaker.bookmark.level	The level number associated with the bookmark.	n/a	note_bookmark.xml, note.xml
documaker.bookmark.toc	1 or 0 to indicate if the bookmark Table of Contents property is checked.	n/a	note_bookmark.xml, note.xml
documaker.bookmark.figure	1 or 0 to indicate if the bookmark Table of Figures property is checked.	n/a	note_bookmark.xml, note.xml
documaker.bookmark.index	1 or 0 to indicate if the bookmark Index property is checked.	n/a	note_bookmark.xml, note.xml
documaker.bookmark.index.main	if the bookmark Index property is checked, this outputs the text associated with the main subject property.	n/a	note_bookmark.xml, note.xml
documaker.bookmark.index.subentry	if the bookmark Index property is checked, this outputs the text associated with the subentry property	n/a	note_bookmark.xml, note.xml
documaker.link.name	Contains the hyperlink name (used by Target and hyperlinks).	n/a	bitmap.xml, stext.xml, field.xml
documaker.link.type	Contains a number representing the type of hyperlink (1 = target, 2 = external, 4 = internal).	n/a	bitmap.xml, stext.xml, field.xml
documaker.link.options	Contains a number representing the border style (0 = none, 1 = solid box, 2 = dashed box, 3 = underline).	n/a	bitmap.xml, stext.xml, field.xml
documaker.link.href	This will reflect the URL of the link. Possible values: An absolute URL - points to another web site (like href="http://www.example.com/default.htm") A relative URL - points to a file within a web site (like href="default.htm") Link to an element with a specified id within the page (like href="#top") Other protocols (like https://, fip://, mailto:, file:, etc) A script (like href="javascript:alert('Hello');")	n/a	bitmap.xml, stext.xml, field.xml
documaker.link.params	Use this field when producing HTML output to specify additional parameters to an external (HREF) type link, such as a target frame or mouse-over behavior. For example: target="new"	n/a	bitmap.xml, stext.xml, field.xml
documaker.form.metadata	Process through user attribute collection within form and then when processing execute the default snippet or the named context snippet.	n/a	form.xml
documaker.metadata.key	This will return the key from user attribute collection element.	metadata_form.xml	form.xml group.xml master.xml
documaker.metadata.value	This will return the value from user attribute collection element.	metadata_form.xml	form.xml group.xml master.xml
documaker.readonce	1 indicates the section has been set for Read Once 0 indicates the section has not been set for Read Once	n/a	section.xml

### **CREATING A CASCADING STYLE SHEET**

The look and feel of mobile output is critical to your customer's satisfaction. In many cases, great efforts have been put into designing the look and feel of printed output as well. In the event that you want to use font information from the printed format to guide the look of the mobile format, Documaker Studio provides an option to create a CSS from the fonts within the resource library. To produce the CSS, open the workspace as a user with permission to access Font Manager. Open the Fonts Manager and select Export CSS File from the Fonts, Export menu. From here you can select the possible fonts to reference, the name of the file to be created and the type of entity, in this case CSS, to export and click Next. On the Export - Step 2 of 2 dialog, click Select All, then Finish to complete the export. The resulting file can then be manipulated as needed in tools for managing HTML and CSS and distributed for use with mobile output.

### **CHOOSING THE RIGHT MOBILE OUTPUT FORMAT**

Oracle Documaker Mobile provides default snippets in an XML format. However the final targeted delivery format is often HTML. The XML, which serves to capture raw data content from a Documaker document transaction, is then often transformed to HTML through industry standard XSL. The XSL provides the rules for transforming the raw content XML into device responsive HTML5. The snippet output format for your implementation may be XML, HTML or may be another format based on your company's needs. However, when choosing between output formats from your snippets, consider the following points below.

### **Output Format Considerations**

The default Snippets produce an XML output format that is transformed to HTML via EXtensible Stylesheet Language (XSL). However, Snippets can be composed in any UTF8 based text script including HTML, HTML5 and Comma Separated Values (CSV), etc. To create a decision point for the team to determine what snippet output format is to be used, your company may have standards and requirements for the targeted formats. Evaluate other factors like:

- 1. Skill set of the team
- 2. Requirements of the delivery and the end users including:
  - Intended supported browsers
  - Intended devices or platforms
  - Speed and responsiveness
- 3. Ability of the output format to deliver the intended customer experience

A popular choice for mobile output is HTML5. Mobile output rendered in HTML5 from Documaker can leverage all parts of the HTML5 standards including Cascading Style Sheets (CSS/CSS3), JavaScript (and JS based frameworks such as jQuery), AJAX, Web Fonts and all other HTML/HTML5 based features. This allows you to design a mobile experience using all of the latest industry standard capabilities.

While selecting the format of snippet contents, consider the following when choosing between producing XML that must be transformed (client or server side) when compared with producing HTML directly from Documaker Mobile.

Option 1: XML Output	Option 2: HTML Output
Payload depends on location of transformation. If transformation occurs on the server, the ultimate payload may be small	The client may have a large payload
Follows industry XSLT standards to transform output to responsive HTML/JavaScript	Raw output from Documaker may be usable in the browser, does not require further transformation.
Tools such as Dreamweaver is capable of understanding XSLT	

### **Chapter 3**

# **Delivering Mobile Output**

This chapter provides detailed information on the mobile delivering process. This chapter discusses the following topics:

- Mobile Output Process on page 30
- Mobile Output Transformation on page 34
- Mobile Output Management Workflow on page 35

## **MOBILE OUTPUT PROCESS**

Mobile output generation, like all other output formats, may occur on demand or in a batch process. Part of the document automation team's role is to work with a crossfunctional team to determine how your company will make mobile output from Documaker available to your customers. We will explore possible work flows for mobile output management for both on demand document access and generation as well as batch creation for access.

Regardless of the delivery methodology, secure access to mobile content must be established through your existing customer access systems. Generally this means that the customer would login to your company's web portal to gain access to mobile content. The web portal is therefore responsible for managing client identification and client profile information including the customer's content delivery preferences and authorization for web content delivery. If your company does not already have a web portal strategy in place Oracle has a WebCenter product that can be considered.

The scenarios provided below offer possible options for mobile delivery that may suit the needs of your requirements. These scenarios cover the basic flow of request, processing, and presentation; however, there may be additional considerations such as transformation or filtering of the generated content.

### Scenario 1 - Real Time Generation and Display

In this scenario the system creates mobile output and returns it to the user at the time of request. In this case the output is created at the point in time when the customer wants access to the output.

- 1. Customer requests access to a mobile document via portal or online application
- 2. The Portal or application request with the available data is routed to Documaker
- 3. Documaker returns the personalized content to targeted location and provides feedback to calling application
- 4. Portal or application streams the content to the customer

This methodology is suitable for situations where a defined set of customer data has already been processed in a prior Documaker request. For example, your system generates monthly billing statements that have historically been mailed to the customer. The customer typically receives a monthly statement in the mail and has not signed up for electronic delivery. However, they now are online, logged in to your company portal, and wish to view last month's statement electronically. In a traditional PC browser they could view a generated PDF (assuming one was created when the paper statement was generated); however, you wish to provide them with a richer mobile experience on their mobile device. To support this effort, the company portal can provide an option that will allow the user to view their prior month's statement in mobile form. The web portal must be able to identify the transaction identifier for the content to be delivered to the end user. The portal would be responsible for sending a web service request with that identifier to Documaker's doPublishFromFactory web service method and for processing the response. Using values returned in the doPublishFromFactory and doGetPublishingInfo web services response, the portal would then call doGetPublishingInfo using the Heavy setting to return the mobile output in the response so that it can be streamed back to the user's device. For more information on configuring the doPublishFromImport and doGetPublishingInfo web services to respond with the needed output, see the Documaker Enterprise Edition Administration's Guide topic "Using Documaker Web Services".

Note that this method assumes the content can be rendered independently of other files or that the files are contained/referenced elsewhere. The doPublishFromImport response only contains the mobile output contents.

### Scenario 2 - Repurpose and Display

In this scenario the system creates mobile output from previously processed data and returns it to the user at the time requested. In this case the data necessary for the output was used in advance of the customer's request for generation and delivery in a non-mobile format. The prior request is repurposed to create the mobile output.

- 1. Back office system routes a request with data to Documaker
- 2. Documaker generates and delivers content
  - **a.** Customer locates prior transaction/activity through the portal or application and requests access to a mobile document
  - b. System locates prior request and requests mobile output
  - c. Documaker uses the prior request to generate personalized content
  - d. System streams the content to the customer

This methodology is suitable for situations where a defined set of customer data has already been processed in a prior Documaker request. For example, your system generates monthly billing statements that have historically been mailed to the customer. The customer typically receives a monthly statement in the mail and has not signed up for electronic delivery. However, they now are online, logged in to your company portal, and wish to view last month's statement electronically. In a traditional PC browser they could view a generated PDF (assuming one was created when the paper statement was generated); however, you wish to provide them with a richer mobile experience on their mobile device. To support this effort, the company portal can provide an option that will allow the user to view their prior month's statement in mobile form. The web portal must be able to identify the transaction identifier for the content to be delivered to the end user. The portal would be responsible for sending a web service request with that identifier to Documaker's doPublishFromFactory web service method and for processing the response. Using values returned in the doPublishFromFactory and doGetPublishingInfo web services response, the portal would then call doGetPublishingInfo using the heavy setting to return the mobile output in the response so that it can be streamed back to the user's device. For more information on configuring the doPublishFromFactory web service to respond with the needed output, see the Documaker Enterprise Edition Administration's Guide topic "Documaker Web Services".

This methodology is suitable for situations where you will not generate mobile output in advance but have created the output in a traditional format. In this scenario mobile output is generated based on a request, either on demand or scheduled batch and the output is retained within the Documaker processing tables. Documaker only retains prior requests for a temporary period established by your corporate guidelines and configured with the Historian tasks. The application that generated the request must know the correct index information to locate the content, allowing the portal to provide a direct link to the staged content and the portal is also responsible for managing access to that link. While it is always possible to reference an invalid link in other Use Cases noted, it is important to consider accessing the links back to the Documaker processing tables during temporary storage.

### Scenario 3 - Archive and Display

In this scenario the system creates mobile output during a scheduled process, archives it in a repository, and returns it to the user at the time requested. In this case the data necessary for the output was used in advance of the customer's request display to generate the content and stage it for future display.

- 1. Back office system routes a request with data to Documaker
- 2. Documaker generates and stores the mobile content into a repository (e.g. WebCenter Content)
  - a. Customer requests access to a mobile document
  - b. System locates stored content in the repository
  - c. System streams the content to the customer

This methodology is suitable for situations where a defined set of customer data is to be processed in advance of its access and use. For example, you may wish to prepare periodic statements for customers that have opted-in to electronic delivery. A customer's monthly banking statement for example where the data is generated on a scheduled basis, processed by Documaker, and stored in a content management system for later access. In this case, a customer may receive a notification that their statement is available (see scenario 4) or happens to log in to your customer portal and can access the content there. In this case the customer selects a link presented in the portal which ties back to the content repository. The content repository returns the content and the web portal would then be responsible for transformation (if needed) and presentation to the customer.

In this scenario Documaker is not invoked at the time of delivery. This scenario differs from scenario 2 in that the mobile content is pre-created and stored in a repository for eventual delivery.

### Scenario 4 - Mail Notification and Delivery

In this scenario the system creates mobile output during a scheduled or on demand request and delivers it via email. In this case the output is pushed to the user.

- 1. Back office system routes a request with data to Documaker
- 2. Documaker generates the mobile content
- 3. Documaker attaches the content to an email and delivers it to the customer

This methodology is suitable for situations where the mobile content should be delivered via email and is generated while the user is not waiting for the request. For example - a personalized notification to complete forms online for the customer (patient's) upcoming appointment. On a scheduled basis, content from the originating application would be sent to Documaker, Documaker would process the data to create mobile output and then generate an email with that content to send to the intended recipient. In this use case, it is important that sensitive information be sent in a secure fashion or not sent at all. With this scenario, it is also important to keep in mind the limitations of mail clients to view certain file types and perform certain transformations. As always, be sure to validate that your mobile output displays appropriate for your intended mobile devices.

### **Additional Considerations**

The Scenarios "Repurpose and Display" and "Archive and Display", require the calling application to have some identifying information linking the previously generated data or previously processed output. There are two possible ways for the calling application to have this information:

- **a.** Documaker returns a unique identifier to the calling application when the original request to process the data is made.
- **b.** The calling application provides a unique identifier when originally requesting the content creation from Documaker.

In the On Demand scenarios listed above, the mobile output is provided back to the web portal via the calling web service. While this is a convenient method for providing access to the content, it is possible to generate the content on demand, have Documaker store the content in a content repository and provide the locating details back to the calling application. None of the methodologies presented dictate where the mobile content ultimately resides. Where you want the content to reside should guide how the mobile content is accessed. Additionally, the two concepts do not need to be related. Your company may choose to provide mobile output back to the web portal within the Documaker Web Service response but to also store the output in WebCenter Content repository for subsequent access and retention considerations. The decisions on where and for how long to retain the output in this format depend on your company's requirements to retain and reuse the output.

### **Mobile supporting files**

Mobile output produced by Documaker may be self-contained but it's likely that your implementation will have external resources needed for Mobile output display. Items such as bitmaps and JavaScripts can in that case be versioned and stored separately from the Documaker Mobile content. Therefore your infrastructure will need to include a web server or provide sufficient access to this static content. The Documaker Mobile output generated must be able to properly reference to the static content in the selected location.

### **Mobile Output Transformation**

Depending upon the output format created by Documaker Mobile (XML, HTML5, etc.) transformation may be needed to produce the final presentation composition of a mobile document.

The mobile output format generated from Documaker Mobile is determined by your company and the needs of the content being presented. The "Mobile Output Format" topic reviews some considerations for the format of mobile output. If XML is selected as the target output format for mobile content from your snippets, you will need to determine where the resulting XML for mobile will be transformed to HTML for presentation in a browser. The transformation may occur at one of many points within the mobile document production workflow, including on your web server or in the browser of mobile document recipients. Here are some things to consider when selecting either server side or client side transformation from XML to HTML.

# **Considerations for each Server Side and Client Side transformation**

Below are some items to consider when choosing between client side and server side transformation activities within the mobile delivery workflow.

- Server Side provides consistent transformation by running all mobile documents through the same transformation engine on the server.
- Server Side, may reduce the size of the payload delivered from your Web server to the browser of your mobile document recipients when compared with client side transformation.

- Server Side, offers several options for where the transformation can be implemented in a typical mobile delivery workflow:
  - For example it may be executed on the XML payload delivered from Documaker Web services (DWS) calls before the results are provided to your Web Portal or Web Content Management System.
  - It can be executed in your Web Portal when retrieving content from the Content Management System feeding your Portal, or it may possibly be executed in your Web Portal just before delivering content through the Portal to your HTTP server that will feed the content to the browsers of mobile document recipients.
- Server Side uses resources on your Web servers to perform the XML to HTML transformation.
- Server Side becomes a step in your mobile delivery work flow implementation that must be implemented by your technical team.
- Client Side does not consume resources on your Web servers to perform the transformation. i.e. Moves the CPU load required to perform XML to HTML transformation from your Web servers to the browsers of your mobile document recipients.
- Client Side may increase the size of the payload delivered from the Web server to the browser of mobile document recipients when compared with server side transformation.
- Client Side produces inconsistent transformation as different browsers implement transformation engines uniquely on each client. This can be a particular challenge with IE browsers where some features of the W3C specification for handling client side XML transformation appear to not be completely supported (specifically support appears to be missing for embedded style sheets in an XML document through IE11 as of the writing of this document).

### **MOBILE OUTPUT MANAGEMENT WORKFLOW**

We have reviewed a number of possible use cases for managing mobile output. The following presents the possible workflows from the end user experience:

- 1. Customer signs on to the company portal.
  - **a.** This could be triggered by a notification that a document is available.
  - **b.** This notification can be sent by or triggered by Oracle Documaker and can occur when the mobile output is generated or when the data is available to generate the mobile output
- 2. Portal authenticates customer and presents customer with options to view available mobile documents
- 3. Customer selects a mobile document, or activity if the mobile document is not yet created, for viewing
- 4. The portal can then do one of three things:

- **a.** If the mobile output is already generated and stored in the content repository serving the portal, the portal can display the mobile output from its own repository.
- **b.** If the mobile output is already generated and still available in Documaker's Assembly Line tables the portal can use Documaker Web Services.
- **c.** If the mobile output is not generated, the portal can use Documaker Web Services to generate the mobile output on demand.
#### **Chapter 4**

# **Configuring and Enabling Mobile**

This chapter provides detailed information on configuring, installation and validating installation of Oracle Documaker Mobile.

This chapter discusses the following topics:

- Configuring Mobile for Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition on page 38
- Validating Documaker Mobile Installation on page 40
- Configuring Mobile for Oracle Documaker Standard Edition on page 42
- Validating Documaker Mobile Installation on page 43

# CONFIGURING MOBILE FOR ORACLE DOCUMAKER ENTERPRISE EDITION

Oracle Documaker Mobile is enabled in Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition (ODEE) using the Documaker Administrator. Before configuring Oracle Documaker Mobile within ODEE, you should first do the following:

- 1. Install Oracle Documaker Mobile on the Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition application server according to the steps within the Oracle Documaker Mobile Installation Guide.
- 2. Ensure that the default and custom snippet files along with the needed mobile supporting files adapts, javascripts, etc. are located in the mrolib location defined for your system.
- 3. To process the policy, quote and financial statement documents into mobile ready, user friendly content you are recommended to use the sample snippets and supporting files available through Oracle Technology Network (OTN). The default snippets within the ODEE installation will only provide the contents that are useful for data exchange. The sample files are located on OTN with the Help, Tutorials, and Samples pages for the current version of Documaker. Download these samples and extract the files to the *mrolib* location defined for your system.
- 4. Ensure that the mobile supporting files jpgs, javascripts, etc. are located wherever they may be referenced based on the selected delivery methods to be used in your implementation. For example, if you will be sending content to WebCenter and your users will be accessing mobile documents stored within WebCenter, ensure that the files needed to render the mobile output are available in the referenced location in WebCenter.
- 5. Identify any notification content needed to support the selected delivery methods to be used in your implementation. If you plan to generate notifications from the Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition, collect the required language for the notification.
- 6. Identify the conditions for producing Mobile output for a given transaction. This aspect is an extension of the selected delivery methods used for the implementation. For example, if you are generating Mobile output for users who have opted for a 'paperless' initiative, determine the identifier for this process within the incoming data feed. In the samples provided with Oracle Documaker Mobile, mobile output is generated based on the 'SMS' distribution value. Ensure that this condition is routed to a targeted batch for processing.

To enable a batch to generate mobile output, navigate to the batch definition to be mobile enabled. Select the MRO output format for that batch. If Oracle Documaker Mobile has not been installed on the ODEE server, the mobile option will be enabled, but mobile output will not be generated. Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition contains a script that determines how Oracle Documaker Mobile output will be delivered. Use the Oracle Documaker Administrator's Archive destinations to configure where the mobile output should be delivered. The possible options to include the archive destinations are defined in the 'Configuring the Archiver' Section of the Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition Administrator's Guide. You can also choose your custom destination to create a Mobile batch, configure the batch for File system output, and establish a notification message to alert the recipient of the mobile output.

This script, *dmkr\_asline\_mobile.sql*, is stored in the /*documaker/database/databasetype/mobile* directory. You can run this script with appropriate permissions to get an example established within your system. The specific script is stored by database type in the following locations based on the database selected during installation:

Database Type	Location
Oracle	odee_1/documaker/database/oracle11g/mobile
DB2	odee_1/documaker/database/db2v97/mobile
SQL Server	odee_1/documaker/database/sqlserver2012/mobile

**Note:** When running the SQL dmkr\_asline\_mobile.sql for SQL Server that the file genericnotificationmessage.txt has to be in a location accessible by the SQL Server Database server and referenced as such in the dmkr\_asline\_mobile.sql BULK command so that the SQL Server run successfully. See note in dmkr\_asline\_mobile.sql

Alternatively, you may use the script and notification content as a template to modify and deploy the mobile output. If you don't want to run the script, you may also choose to not to run the script. In such case, you can simply use the Administrator tool to define the batch and the delivered configuration for the implementation.

The base installer for Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition creates the default output folder for the MRO Batch's FileSystem Archiver output to be ODEE factory *root installer* + .\*filesystem-archive* 

For example, if you install in *c*:\*oracle*\*odee\_1*, the Mobile created Batch will get the output location as *c*:\*oracle*\*odee\_1*\*documaker*\*filesystem-archive* 

The batch, the output location, and the notification content are provided only as samples and are expected to be modified or used solely as a reference for your implementation. You should choose a location and a file destination output which meets your delivery needs.

The Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition installation comes with a reference implementation. The reference implementation has sample files for processing that may be used to demonstrate mobile delivery post installation of Oracle Documaker Mobile. The implementation also includes the settings needed for Mobile processing; be sure to copy over the default snippet and resource files to your *mrolib* location as instructed in the Oracle Documaker Mobile Installation Guide.

If your delivery scenario calls for a notification message, you must define the notification message using a database tool to access the PUBNTFS table. For more information on the contents of this table, see the Oracle Documaker Enterprise Edition Administration's Guide.

# **VALIDATING DOCUMAKER MOBILE INSTALLATION**

Once you have installed the ODEE and Oracle Documaker Mobile setups and wish to validate your installation, follow the steps below:

To Enable Mobile output, use the Documaker Administrator web application to configure the output type, destination, and handling.

1. Login to Documaker Administrator and enable the Mobile Batchings. To know more about the Mobile Batchings see the 'Understand Batches' section in ODEE Admin Guide.

Configure the Documaker system and a	Systems Overview	System 1 - Assem	ably Line 1 - Presenter	Batchings: System 1 - Assembly Line 1					
	Batchings	Batchings							
	View 👻 💠 🖥								
	ID	Name	Туре	Active	Recipient Batch Name	Recipient Batch Type			
	1	EMAIL	Immediate 💌	2	BATCH1	ADDRESSEE			
	2	FAX	Immediate	_	BATCH1	ADDRESSEE			
	3	LOCALPRINT	Immediate	~	BATCH1	ADDRESSEE			
	4	BATCH	Scheduled	~	BATCH1	ADDRESSEE			
	5	MMS	Immediate	~	BATCH1	ADDRESSEE			
	6	SMS	Immediate	~	BATCH1	ADDRESSEE			
	7	Mobile	Immediate	~	BATCH1	ADDRESSEE			
	Columns Hidden 48								
	Output Schedul	e Distribution	Processing Rules						
	Output Type MP	м 💌	MIME Type messa	ge/rfc822					
	Output Type Rule								

- 2. In Mobile Batchings, activate the Archive Distribution and activate the Notifications property.
- 3. In the left panel, click *Systems* link. and expand *System node* and *Assembly Line node* in the right panel.
- 4. Select the row containing the newly-installed assembly line for Mobile, select *Archiver*, and click *Configure*.
- 5. From the Archiver tab, select *Filesystem-Mobile* category within DESTINATION context name, and select Mappings.
- 6. Create an *mrolib* directory in your workspace. Copy the files and resources folder from *Oracle\odee\_1\mobile\_install\mstrres\mobile* to the following location:

*C*:\Oracle\Middleware\user\_projects\domain\idocumaker\_domain\servers\idm \_server\stage\WipEdit\WipEdit\mrolib

 Select the *destination.file.name.pattern property* and edit the value to point to C:\Oracle\Middleware\user\_projects\domain\idocumaker\_domain\servers\idm server\stage\WipEdit\WipEdit\mrolib directory.

This enables the mobile output.

#### To validate the Documaker Mobile Installation

- 1. Back up the *default.xml* and *default.json* files located in *odee\_1\documaker\mstrres\dmres\input* folder.
- 2. Drop the *default.xml* and *default.json* files in the hotfolder directory on the Document Factory server.

# CONFIGURING MOBILE FOR ORACLE DOCUMAKER STANDARD EDITION

To configure the Oracle Documaker Mobile within ODSE, you should first do the following:

- 1. Install Oracle Documaker Mobile on the Oracle Documaker Standard Edition application according to the steps within the Oracle Documaker Mobile Installation Guide.
- 2. Create an *mrolib* directory in your workspace, for example:



- Copy the files and resources folder from Oracle\odee\_1\mobile\_install\mstrres\mobile to the mrolib folder in your workspace. Make sure that the default and custom snippet files along with the needed mobile supporting files - adapts, javascripts, etc. - should be located in the mrolib location defined in your system.
- 4. Open the workspaces *fsisys.ini* file using any text editor. Add PrtType = MRO to the <Printers> group, for example:

PCL MRO

Printers	>	
PrtType		=
PrtType		=

5. Add <PrtType: MRO> group and settings:

<	<pre>PrtType:MRO &gt;</pre>		
	Class	=	MRO
	Device	=	mrolib\default.xml
	Module	=	MROW32
	PrintFunc	=	MROPrint
	TermFunc	=	MROTerm
	SnippetExt	=	.xml

6. Save your *fsisys.ini* file.

<

7. Ensure that the mobile supporting files - jpgs, javascripts, etc. - are located wherever they may be referenced based on the selected delivery methods to be used in your implementation.

# VALIDATING DOCUMAKER MOBILE INSTALLATION

Perform the following steps to validate an Oracle Documaker Standard Edition and Oracle Documaker Mobile installation:

- 1. Open the workspace in Studio, then open Test Manager.
- **Note** If you do not already have a test profile, you will be prompted to create one. Run the test profile.
  - 2. Click *Run* button to start the test run.



3. Click *Step* button several times to process further until *Gendata Process Complete* status appears in the output area.

Output
[02:30:25PM] Field - INTERLEV-2
[02:30:25PM] Field - UPC-A
[02:30:25PM] Field - UPC-EO10
[02:30:25PM] Field - UPC-EO6
[02:30:25PM] Field - UPC-EI6
[02:30:25PM] Field - UPC2ADD
[02:30:25PM] Field - UPC5ADD
[02:30:25PM] Field - MSI-NO
[02:30:25PM] Field - MSI-10D
[02:30:25PM] Field - MSI10-10D
[02:30:25PM] Field - MSI11-10D
[02:30:25PM] Field - CODE128ADD
[02:30:25PM] Field - planet14
[02:30:27PM] Transaction 5234567 Complete
[02:30:28PM] Key1 - FSI; Key2 - GL; Key3 - ; Transaction - 5234567
[02:30:29PM] Gendata process complete.

4. When the transaction completes, select *File, Print, Document View*.



5. Set the Print type *MRO* and click *Ok* to generate the output file.

🚰 MRO Print	
Print type: MRO 💌	Form/Form Set: Form Set
Device: mrolib\default.xml	
Options	Recipients
✓ Download fonts	
✓ Template fields	INJOKED
Send overlays	
✓ Select recipients	
🗖 Send Color	
✓ Pre-printed Paper	

#### To validate the Documaker Mobile Installation

Go to *mrolib* folder of your MRL and open the *default.xml* file to view the MRO.

#### **Chapter 5**

# **Best Practices**

This identifies the implementation considerations and best practice approaches to guide you through the options available with Documaker Mobile.

- 1. Secure a Mobile Author for the Documaker team from the outset.
- 2. Emphasize usability in the layout of the mobile experience. We recommend a mobile (phone) first approach to layout design.
- 3. Define mobile content divisions for navigation of mobile "pages".
- 4. Define mobile content interactions such as drill in or field level inter activity.
- 5. Map page based content to the mobile presentation (we recommend via XSLT) and supply relevant Names to Documaker publishing objects in your MRL as required to map page content to the mobile presentation.
- 6. Ensure that all needed infrastructure is available such as WebCenter, iOS and Android Emulator as well as access to real physical mobile devices (one each for Smart Phone, Tablet covering iOS and Android).
- We recommend XML be used for defining snippets contents and XSLT be used to transform the XML to HTML for a mobile presentation, but this is not a requirement.
- 8. Identify the approach your company will use for delivery of mobile content and engage other resources in your company as needed as early as possible in your mobile document development process. Delivery of mobile content from Documaker to your customers will usually require your company's web technical team to create calls to Documaker's Web Services (DWS) interfaces. Our recommendation is to use something like a Web Portal to control customer access to documents from Documaker and to manage content referenced by mobile XML/HTML documents in particular from Documaker.

#### **Chapter 6**

# Troubleshooting

This chapter provides troubleshooting tips for issues you might encounter during the Mobile Implementation.

#### 1. I have installed Documaker Mobile, but cannot access the Mobile options when using the Documaker Add-In for Microsoft Word

After you have installed Documaker Mobile, you will need to re-export your Workspace Definition. See the topic "GENERATING A WORKSPACE DEFINITION FILE" in the Documaker Studio user guide for details on exporting this file.

#### 2. Cannot access Mobile options Context Tag or Omit in Documaker Studio either at the resource level, for example, Application Definition, Sections, Forms or the object level, for example Charts, Fields, Text Areas, etc.)

Mobile options requires Documaker Mobile. If you have not purchased and installed Documaker Mobile the required mobile options will be disabled. To purchase Documaker Mobile, visit My Oracle Support website or contact your Oracle Sales representative.

# 3. Cannot define a new context tag in a resource, such as a Section or a Field

Check the user right "Limit to pre-defined context tags". When this option is turned on, the user is limited to selecting pre-defined context tags specified in the Application Definition file.

# 4. Is there a way to write snippet contents to the trace file at runtime?

The Debug\_Switches INI group contains the option MRO\_Debug which when active, includes snippet information in the trace file.

To activate, set both Enable\_Debug\_Options and MRO\_Debug to Yes

#### For example,

 Opening C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\master\_financials.xml \* UTLDefWarnNotify \* PrtType:MRO: Unable to open file C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\master\_financials.xml

Unable to open file C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\master financials.xml

Opening C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\master.xml

• Opening C:\FAP\mstrres\\enterprise\MROLIB\group\_financials.xml \* UTLDefWarnNotify \* PrtType:MRO: Unable to open file C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\group\_financials.xml

Unable to open file C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\group\_financials.xml

Opening C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\group.xml

Form name:FS\_COVER

 Opening C:\FAP\mstrresenterprise\MROLIB\form\_financials.xml \* UTLDefWarnNotify \* PrtType:MRO: Unable to open file C:\FAP\mstrres\enterprise\MROLIB\form\_financials.xml

**Note:** Be sure to turn debugging off by setting Enable\_Debug\_Switches to No once you no longer need to log MRO or other debug information to the trace file.

# 5. I am getting results that look fine but a field (or other) value is missing which I expected from the Documaker output.

Generate Mobile output using the Documaker Mobile default snippets, then check for that value in the output. Using the Documaker Mobile default snippets provides a clean way to analyze the output from Documaker.

# 6. I would like to omit groups from my mobile output. How can I accomplish this?

To omit groups from mobile output, you would change the master snippet to use documaker.forms instead of documaker.groups

#### For example,

- <?xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8" ?>
- <DOCSET NAME="documaker.name" DESC="documaker.description">
- <RECIPIENT NAME="documaker.recip"/>

<FONTS>

documaker.fonts

</FONTS>

documaker.forms

</DOCSET>

#### **Appendix A**

# Layout and Design

Whether you are developing new documents for use with 'paper' and mobile presentation or mobilizing existing documents for mobile delivery, user experience should be at the forefront of the effort. Work with a Mobile Author that has experience in SPA based interactive web pages to create a prototype of the targeted mobile experience of the document and then match that to the paper based layout. Keep in mind that not all content in the paper layout needs to be included in the mobile content and vice versa.

An example paper to mobile project is shown here:



#### For the interactive SPA based web page:

- Layout for mobile
  - Columns or divisions of areas where content is displayed
  - Styling for content (fonts, colors)
  - Content layout changes for various devices such as full size browsers running on desktops or laptop, Tablet devices such as iPad and Android based devices, and Phones such as iPhone and Android based phones.
- Navigation

- Content segmentation for navigation (pages, sections, other divisions that make sense for the content)
- Interactive controls used for navigation (buttons, tabs, index sliders, etc)
- Content based interactive navigation (table or chart drill in, content hyperlinks)
- Content data based interactions
  - Table sorting

Data interactions such as "what if" type controls (data entry elements, sliders, other controls)

# LAYOUT EXAMPLE

Let us consider the following pages to design an implementation of a financial statement document.



# **MOCKUP DESIGN FOR MOBILE**

Mobile Author generates an initial mockup design "HTML Wireframe" layout for mobile. See, below:



Based on the initial mockup mobile design and the contents of the example page based document, the first page has a simple table of contents as shown below:



#### **NAVIGATION**

Once you decide the basic division of content that should appear in the mobile view (e.g. mobile content pages), you can begin mapping the content from the page based document to the mobile layout:



# **CONTENT DATA BASED INTERACTIONS**

Once the content is generally mapped to the mobile layout, you can begin looking at content interactions in the mobile view beyond just moving between pages, such as content drill down. For example, in the financial statement, the Relationship Summary table holds rows of totals from other content pages. These rows become a point of navigation to be able to jump from the table row with the totals to the mobile page with the details for that table row as shown in the following figure:



In the example above, the "drill in" navigation is accomplished with styling on the table through Cascading Style Sheets (CSS) and actual navigation triggered through JavaScript. The table row will be highlighted in dark green when the user hovers their mouse over the row. This green highlighting provides a visual clue of drill in support along with a corresponding drill in tooltip.

A wide range of content interactions are possible through HTML5 based mobile content output including controls on the mobile web page that can update embedded data and re-compute values providing mild online analytical processing (OLAP) results.

In the figure below, the death benefit amount is updated and the estimated policy premium values are recomputed as the slider bar under Desired Death Benefit text is moved from side to side.

81 54	fortgage Life Insuranc Edit View Higtory Mortgage Life Insuranc I file////Ci/Users/	e Quote - M Bookmark ce Quote gentsch/Do	eoille Firefox s Icols Help + miloads/ADF Mobile.	/Nev/Ser	sples/Snipe	tDev/life/sform	njquery/mob 🕇	2 ≠ C ] <mark>[</mark>	* Google		P	+	*
					al	amere							Î
<	Agree & Accept	Home	Summary 1	Terms	When	Benefits	Payment	Options	About	Accept	t		
CHAT Online We want to help you make the most of your insurance plan. If you have any questions			Desired Dea	th Ben	efit: 200		y						
about your insurance coverage or you require our assistance, you can:		rage our can:	QUOTE DATE EXPIRATION DATE	Au Oct	gust 1, 2 tober 30	014 , 2014	TOT	AL FIRST P I Semi-Ani	OLICY YE	EAR PRE	MIUM	,	
	Call us toll free 1-800-555-0123	8	PERIOD	Ma	rgaret S	tinson	\$475	\$250	\$	133	\$48		

# **XSLT TECHNIQUES**

XSLT supports a recursive processing model to break up the transformation process into blocks of instructions called Templates, where a top most Template is triggered when the XML document root is found in the XML being transformed. That Template can in turn then trigger other more specialized Templates to process child XML elements it contains.

An XSLT Template can be thought of as a subroutine setup to handle the XML transformation which matches an XPATH selection expression defined for the Template. Here is a conceptual example of an organization for an XSL style sheet with layers of Templates for processing output from the default snippets shipping with Documaker:



In the example above, the XSL Template associated with the XML root ("/") first performs any processing desired at the Documaker document set level and then calls more specific XSL Templates to process the child contents of the XML root element via an apply-templates statement. Those Templates then in turn do the same thereby breaking up the XSL transformation process into smaller and smaller specialized chunks of transformation instructions where the transformation details for each chunk are defined in the lower level Templates.

In the example above, the lower level Templates define an XSL match definition (which is an XPATH expression) that, in this example, also contain XPATH predicate syntax to filter XML elements eligible to be processed by the Template via the value of an "N" attribute. The "N" attribute is populated by the default snippets from Documaker with the name of their publishing object. This capability enables specific XSL Templates to then be defined for processing publishing objects by both object type (e.g. Form, Section, etc.) and by the name of the publishing object (e.g. Form name or Section name that was defined in the Documaker Studio for the MRL).

In the example below, the lowest level section Templates are used to produce mobile aware HTML for specific document sections found in the XML formed by the default snippets.



This mobile aware HTML could have been authored in external tools and then pasted into the XSL Template syntax. The HTML syntax in the XSL Template can be further updated with other XSL syntax such as <xsl:value-of select="FLD[@N='SomeFieldName']"/> which will cause values from the XML being transformed to be inserted directly into the resulting HTML output that forms the mobile presentation end users will see in their browser. There are also times when a formset will contain repeating data for transformation. The XSL sheet that process the XML to HTML can use techniques such as XSL Templates that are described above to recursively process repeating data, or it can use syntax such as <xsl:for-each select="myExpresion"> in Templates to process repeating data. XSL supports syntax that groups duplicates of repeating data so only unique occurrences are processed such as <xsl:key name="Grouped-Forms" match="FRM" use="@N"/> and <xsl:apply-templates select="FRM[generate-id() = generate-id(key('Grouped-Forms', @N)[1])]"/>, or syntax that can look for specific occurrences of repeating data such as: <xsl:value-of select="FRM[@N='FrmName'][1]/SEC/FLD[@N='FldName']"/>. Both of the preceding can be used to process only the first occurrence of a form either at the whole XML document level or at the level of Forms under a Group, respectively.

The preceding paragraphs are an example of a few techniques that are available for use through XSLT. Using recursively called XSL Templates is not a requirement for processing MRO output from Documaker, but is an option worth consideration. There are no restrictions on any XSLT techniques that can be used with Documaker mobile.

#### Appendix B

# **Mobile Responsive Output Format**

There are many tools available for composing HTML that can be used to form mobile responsive output from Documaker. These include Adobe's Dreamweaver, Eclipse Foundation's IDE for Java EE Developers, Notepad++ and many others. This section provides more insight on techniques for forming the HTML composition desired from Documaker mobile.

We recommend these steps:

- 1. Start with setting up a directory with separate files for HTML, CSS, JS, IMG (images) and XSL. Place the files other than the HTML in separate sub directories under the HTML location. It is recommend to use all lowercase for all file and directory names.
- 2. Build prototype HTML with hardcoded values as placeholders for variable data from Documaker. This prototype HTML should follow the design of one of the wireframe layouts defined in *Mockup Design for Mobile* section. The prototype HTML can then be distributed for further review and adjustment. Mark hard coded values in the HTML with a special CSS style class, such as "hardcode val". This will be used later in the variable content mapping process.
- 3. Add @media rules to the CSS used with the prototype to adjust the style rules for various max-width values. So in step 2, if you started with the thinnest layout (mobile first design) add rules to implement the wireframe and handle styling for the larger layout(s). The idea here is to make as few updates possible in the @media rules to achieve the desired results. Doing this allows you to treat the @media rules as limited overrides to the base CSS rules and it allows changes to the base CSS rules to flow through to all layout sizes without requiring special attention in the @media definitions.
- 4. Add JavaScript automation to the prototype that supports your desired mobile page navigation. This may include handling click events on a document menu or other navigation UI paradigm. Place the JavaScript syntax required in a file with a \*.js extension in the directory setup for JS files. You may consider using jQuery as a framework for implementing mobile document automation and UI event handling.
- 5. Add JavaScript automation to the prototype that supports your desired content data based interactions (things such as table row drill in). Again place the JavaScript syntax in a file (can be the same file as step 4) with a \*.js extension in the directory setup for JS files.

- 6. Merge the prototype HTML just created with the XSL Stylesheet developed previously to process the XML produced by the Documaker MRO and snippets. Depending on the tools you are using to compose HTML, either chunks of HTML can be pasted into various XSL Templates that will push out the HTML depending on XML contents from Documaker, or the HTML can mostly be placed in the root XSL Template (where match="/") and then other XSL techniques can be used to control the HTML output (such as <xsl:for-each select="myExpression">). Also find the variable fields that were hardcoded in the prototype HTML syntax and replace their hardcoded values with XSL <xsl:value-of select="FLD[@N='FldName']"/> syntax so that live XML values from Documaker will flow through to the HTML output for testing.
- **Note** Change the HTML CSS style class used on the values that are now mapped from XSL to a new value such as "variable\_val". It helps you identify what values are live and what values are hard coded.
  - 7. Optionally add support for rendering charts and tables from Documaker in your mobile output. There are examples of both table and chart rendering logic contained the default snippets supplied with Documaker mobile for this purpose. This logic can be taken from the Documaker mobile defaults and reused in your own output to form charts and tables based on the JSON data produced by the Documaker MRO.
  - 8. Create a master snippet in your snippet library deployed with Documaker. You can copy the default master.xml snippet and save it with a new name by adding a context value to the file name with an underscore (for example: "master\_benefits.xml", the context value is "benefits"). In the new master snippet update the XSL Stylesheet reference to equate to the XSL Stylesheet you have created by updating the href attribute of line "<?xml-stylesheet type="text/xsl" href="resources/xsl/default.xsl" ?>" replacing the "resources/xsl/default.xsl" entry so it equates to the location of your XSL Stylesheet.
  - 9. In Documaker Studio, update the Documaker Application Definition for the formset (KEY1/KEY2) whose composition output will be used to drive this mobile output with a global context value. This value will be used to locate the desired master snippet. For example, if the global context value is set to "benefits" in Studio then the Documaker MRO will look for snippets that have "\*\_ benefits.xml" in their file name, starting with the master snippet: "master\_benefits.xml". Usually the only snippet you will need to customize is the master, so you will not need to copy and create any other snippets with a "\*\_ benefits.xml" name. In the example above the Documaker MRO will first look for snippets named "\*\_ benefits.xml" and then it will look for the default snippet names that do not have the "\_ benefits" in their name.
  - 10. Generate Mobile Output by printing with the MRO or Mobile Responsive Output delivery channel. This will drop an XML dataset file (assuming XML based snippets) that you can use for testing in a browser by directly opening the XML file with a browser. The browser (IE9+, Firefox, Chrome, Safari, iOS, Android) will run an XML to HTML transform on the XML file that was directly opened so you can test.

As testing continues, most of the updates required will usually be to the XSL Stylesheet, either adjusting XSLT logic or adjusting the HTML being written by the XSLT to achieve the mobile presentation desired. As changes are made to the XSL, CSS, JS or XML data file the change impacts can be viewed and retested by refreshing the browser window. Once testing looks solid with an initial transaction, create several Documaker transactions to test with. Make sure to touch on various transaction configurations from Documaker to test as many possible combinations and ordering of XML from the Documaker MRO as possible for your document.

11. When development testing is complete, it's time to reorganize the document's mobile components for production deployment. Review the CSS, JS, IMG and XSL files for looking for referenced content that can be embedded in the XSL for the document. For example, CSS rules that were developed just for this mobile document can be placed in the XSL as part of the root XSL Template so they are emitted as in-line styles with the HTML results. Placing the CSS rules in the XSL eliminates management and delivery (via HTTP/HTTPS) of an external file along with the mobile document.

All CSS and JS files that are not shared resources between other documents or web pages should be embedded in the XSL as part of the root XSL Template.

12. Optionally move the contents of the (now probably quite a bit larger) XSL document into your master snippet XML replacing the XSL Stylesheet reference in the master snippet XML. This removes the XSL document an external file that must be managed (and delivered via HTTP/HTTPS) along with the mobile document. Now all the mobile composition instructions for this document are housed in the master snippet, and the resulting mobile output requires a minimum delivery footprint of files from the Web server. The last step in this process is to involve your company's web masters to discuss mobile document delivery options such as your company web portal.

#### **Appendix C**

# **Mobile Document Authoring Tools**

## **ADOBE'S DREAMWEAVER**

Dreamweaver is a commercial tool that does HTML and CSS composition. It also supports composing XSL with syntax coloring and help and has a feature to run XSL with an XML data file for testing from the editor tools. Here is an example of the Life quote as an HTML document under development in Dreamweaver:

vie Solt Live	. 0.7		A A O Revincia	ers/Demo/Doc ment	ts/DreamWeau		0
oper   oper				a goe ago a ago			· · · · · ·
			alamere				
		a .boldtext #menuOffer +	Advice. Protection. Complete.				
<	Agree & Accept Home	Summary Terms When Ben	efits Payment Options Abo	ut Accept			
	CHAT Online	Your insurance p	olicy				
	We want to help you		· ·				
	make the most of	Desired Death Penefit (contract					
	your insurance plan. If	Desired Death Benefit: 1000000					
	you have any						2
l i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	insurance coverage						
	or you require our	OUDTE DATE	August 1 2014				
	assistance, you can:	EXPIRATION DATE	October 30, 2014		TOTAL FIRST POLICY YE	AR PREMIUM	
			15 Years	Annual	Semi-Annual Quar	terly Monthly EFT	
	Call us toll free	APPLICANT	Margaret Stinson	\$475	\$250 \$1	\$133 \$48	
	1-800-555-0123	AGE/GENDER	40/Male				
	Write to us at	DEATH BENEFIT	\$1,000,000				S 2 1
	Alamara Life	EXAM REQUIRED	Full				
	Insurance Company P.O. Box 123, Station	ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUM	\$475				
	Z, Mississauga, ON A9B 9Z9	Alamere Life Insurance Company a this policy is in force.	grees to pay benefits in accorda	ince with the te	erms and conditions of this p	olicy for losses occur while	
		+ You have a right to examine th	is policy for 10 days				
		If you agree to this quote Alamere w to you prior to executing the policy.	vill work with your primary care p	rovider to sche	edule a full physical and bloo	d test at no additional cost	
		The quotes generated by this program are not a co exact premium can only be determined after an un to misrepresentation on the application and when i details.	ontract, binder, or agreement to extend life ins derwriting review and may be different or the death is the result of suicide in the first two p	irance coverage an policy may not be a licy years. This is a	nd are based on the listed factors and the valiable. There are limitations and conditi general description of coverage. Please	applicable underwriting criteria. The ons regarding payment of benefits due contact an Alamere agent for further	
	DISC	LAIMER: Oracle Insurance created Alamere as a fictio	nal insurance company to demonstrate potent	al Oracle product us	es. The scenarios, events, and people dep	ided herein are fidional, and any	
	< Anree & Accent Simil	arity to real persons or events are coincidental and uni	intended. Other organizations may not operate	or use Oracle offerin	gs as demonstrated.		
431 <11>							
432 E <a 1d="m&lt;/td&gt;&lt;td&gt;enuOffer">Summary</a>							
433							
20 2145							
34 <l1> 35 <a id="m&lt;/td&gt;&lt;td&gt;anuTarme">Tarmer/a&gt;</a></l1>							

Here is an example of Dreamweaver's coloring of XSL syntax for the Life example mobile document shipping with Documaker where the HTML from above has been pasted in to XSL Templates for transformation testing:



If you select the test tool from the XSL source, the following warning message is displayed:



Select an XML source:

) () 🗸 🔰 🕨 Libraries	Documents      My Documents      Dre	amWeaver 🕨 policy 🕨		<b>▼ 4</b>	earch policy
Organize 👻 New fold	ler				8== 🕶 🗔
☆ Favorites ② Creative Cloud Fi	Documents library				Arrange by: Folder 🔻
E Desktop	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size	
Becent Placer	resources	10/27/2014 8:42 PM	File folder		
Recent Places	i quote.xml	10/26/2014 9:11 AM	XML File	167 KB	
Libraries Documents My Documer DreamWear policy start_drea Eclipse					
Rela	tive to: Document				

The output for testing in the default browser is shown in the following figure:



**Note** Oracle does not require and neither endorses or discourages the use of **Dreamweaver** when creating Snippets for Documaker Mobile use.

# **ORACLE JDEVELOPER**

JDeveloper is a tool available from Oracle as a general integrated development environment (IDE) for development with Oracle products including deep capabilities for Web development. It has features for editing HTML, XSL, CSS, and XML including rich syntax color coding, with intelligence on the structure of XSL, HTML, and CSS including statement completion help and an outline view of the documents. Here is the prototype Quote output in the HTML editor.



Here is XSL in JDeveloper:



With support for XML testing:

🖮 XSLT Settings	<b>X</b>
Input XML File:	
	Browse
Show Input XML File While Debugging	
Output File	
	Browse
Show Output File While Debugging	
XSLT Source Path:	
	<u>E</u> dit
XSLT Options:	
<u>H</u> elp OK	Cancel

And support for XML editing:

Surveile IDeveloper 11g Release 2 - Mobil	e SPA.jws : Mobile SPA Example.jpr				
Elle Edit Yew Application Relacto	r Search Navigate Build Bun	Versigning Tools	Window Help		
300000X00	0-0-8-423		A		Qel Seach
Acetication Newspater X	Reade and X				Component Palette
	Deal stand	171 1 10 104	b. W	-	0
		MI 14 10	N	0	4
Turdera M d A . T.	chasi version-"1.0" e	acoding="VIX-6" 19			104
III III Mobile SPA Example	COML-Stylenoset tipe	- DESTABLE PROPERTY.	DESCRIPTION AND LINE AND TO COMPANY AND A DESCRIPTION AND A DESCRI		Podata-section
In a web content	"name": "Teat	Benefir"	and a first in the second seco		C #comment
a units introd	"FOND"1 11	and and a second s			O Pprocessing instru
and a set of the set		"DOW"1 1.			A rest
C Marcalant		"celle":	1		
		"1":	"DEAIM MEMEFIL",		
		*2*:	*65,000,000*		
		1			
	3. 6			υ.	
		"DOW"1 2,			
and the second		"cells":	1		
: Application Resources		"1":	"ELLA RECORD ".		
A Recently Opened Files		-1-1			
1		1			
geote.xml - Strecture ×	Storman Ballana	President Butterry	CONSTRUCT SHOWS		
12 00	Trans": "lans	allyamium".	hannes we of		
O Brokesson matrix top - tupe -1	"zowa": 11				
0.000		"row": 1,			
8-O 99		"cells":	4		
D-O RM		*1**	"ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUM",		
e o sec		*2*1	*#475+*		-
8-0 99		1			Convoperty Inspector
8 O ND	13				1 Q Fed
8 O fLD	BIC/TELICTEL S-Trynes	tSchedule" #="0000	E_EDBOART A-TSI		
-O TXA	"hane": "Paym	entSchedule",			
	**************************************				

Note

Oracle does not require and neither endorses or discourages the use of JDeveloper when creating Snippets for Documaker Mobile use.

# **ECLIPSE'S IDE FOR JAVA EE DEVELOPERS**

The Eclipse packaging for Java EE developers is a widely used free open source product that provides almost as much functionality as Dreamweaver does for Documaker mobile document development. This includes a dedicated XML editor.

Java EE - Snippets/SnipettDev	🗑 Java EE - Snippets/SnipettDev125/master.xml - Eclipse							
<u>File Edit Navigate Search P</u>	roject <u>R</u> un <u>D</u> esign <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u>	<u>d</u> elp						
[11] ▼    16    2    2    2    2    2    2								
l₂ + 1 + 1 → + Quick Access Quick Access								
🎦 Project Expl 🛛 🗖 🗖	🕅 master.xml 🔀	- 8	📴 Outline 🛛 🗊 🖻 🔻 🗖 🗖					
🖻 🔩 🐌 ▽		<b> ⊟</b> <sup>∨</sup>	?=? xml					
📄 master_financi 🔺	Node	Content	?=? xml-stylesheet					
master_life.xml	?=? xml	version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8"	e DOC N=documaker.name					
master.xml	?=? xml-stylesheet	type="text/xsl" href="resources/xsl/default.xsl"						
mtformat_finai	⊿ e DOC							
mtformat.xml	3 N	documaker.name						
note_financials	3 V	documaker.version						
note.xml	③ R	documaker.recip						
page_financial:		documaker.groupsdocumaker.fonts						
page.xml								
guote.html								
sdata.xml								
<ul> <li>Image: section tinanci</li> <li>Image: section tinanci</li> </ul>	Design Source							
e DOC								

Ability to also view content through a text editor:

Java EE - Snippets/SnipettDev	r125/master.xml - Eclipse					
<u>File Edit N</u> avigate Se <u>a</u> rch	2roject <u>R</u> un <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp					
[ 🖆 ▾ 🔡 🐘 🖄 🕪 💷 📾 🗷						
v ⇔ + ⇔ + § + v	Quick Access	🖹 🖹 😭 Java EE				
🎦 Project Ex 💥 🖳 🗖	📄 master.xml 🕴					
	1k?xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8" ?>	A 0-				
master financ 🗛	<pre>2<?xml-stylesheet type="text/xsl" href="resources/xsl/default.xsl" ?></pre>					
master life.vn	3 <doc n="documaker.name" r="documaker.recip" v="documaker.version">documaker.group</doc>	sdocumał				
master.xml						
mtformat fini						
mtformat.xml						
note_financia						
note.xml E						
page_financia						
page.xml						
👔 quote.html						
📄 sdata.xml						
section finan		Ŧ				
		•				
	Writable Insert 1:1					

It has a dedicated editor for XSL and HTML (this is the Life quote example document):



Eclipse provides rich syntax color coding, with intelligence on the structure of XSL, HTML, and CSS including statement completion help and an outline view of the HTML document.

Eclipse also provides a special editor for HTML syntax authoring with a level of web preview.

<u>Edit Navigate Search Project Run Winc</u>	w Help		
	:  弓 第:  ☆ ▼ 〇 ▼ 🌯 ▼   湾 ▼ 🕫 ♥ 健 🖕 🖋 ▼   ❷   森   極 ▼ 型 ▼ や や ▼ → ▼   〓 🗉 認 💷   前 ▼   旦 🕫		
Project Explorer 💥 🖃 🔄 🐨 🗖 🗖	🕞 quote.html 🛛	- 8	E Outline
default quotexml     field_barcodexml     field_financials.htm     field_textarea_financials.htm     field_textarea.xml     field_textarea.xml	Accept & Sign - Margaret Stinson Thank you for reviewing Alamere's offer for insurance. By entering the data below and clicking accept you are agreeing that you are Margaret Stinson and that you have reviewed the estimates, terms, and conditions		
infont_financials.htm font.xml form_financials.htm form.xml	of this offer. Once you accept your policy request will be processed and issued subject to the terms and conditions outlined.		
gibrecip.xml group_financials.htm group.xml master_financials.htm	SSN Last 4 Street #		
master_intexmi master.xmi master.xmi mtformat_financials.htm mtformat.xmi	Birth City	+	
<ul> <li>a) note_financials.htm</li> <li>b) note.xml</li> <li>b) page_financials.htm</li> <li>b) page.xml</li> </ul>	678 (strong>Call us toll free 1-800-555-0123 6790 (s) 680 (strong>Write to us at: Alamere Life Insurance Company, P.O. Box 123, Station Z, Mississauga, OM 681 (/di>) 682 (/di>)	A9	
<ul> <li>quote.html</li> <li>sdata.xml</li> <li>section_financials.htm</li> <li>section.xml</li> <li>series.xml</li> </ul>	005 (/011/) 8640 digu Class="contentPage" id="pageAccept"} 8650 digu Class="contentPage" id="pageAccept"} 8650 digu Class="clamerepdfchut"> 8650 digu Class="clamerepdfchut"> 8670 digu Class="class="class="class="clamerepdfchut"> 8670 digu Class="class		
signature.xml stext_financials.htm stext.xml table financials.htm	<pre>689 </pre> //p> 690 //div class="QuoteExclusions"> 6910 (p) 6910 (p) 692 (a target="_blank" href="sampleoutput.pdf" class="tocpdflocation"> <span class="waltoreplace">Download Pol 700 (class="blank" href="sampleoutput.pdf" class="tocpdflocation"&gt;<span class="waltoreplace">Download Pol 700 (class="blank" href="sampleoutput.pdf" class="tocpdflocation"&gt;<span class="waltoreplace">Download Pol 700 (class="blank" href="sampleoutput.pdf" class="tocpdflocation"&gt;&lt;<pre></pre></span></span></span>	Licy	
table.xml textarea_financials.htm textarea.xml	075 < (γ) 6940 (φ) 695 (α href="">Make claim 696		
Vectorium     Sectorium     Sectorium     Default snipetts XSLT 20141003.1.zip     T	698 (a href="*>Pay bill (<) m Design Preview	* •	

**Note** Oracle does not require and neither endorses or discourages the use of **Eclipse** when creating Snippets for Documaker Mobile use.

#### **NOTEPAD++**

Notepad++ is a Windows only free pure text editor with rich support for syntax highlighting. It has no preview capability or deep syntax help like Dreamweaver or Eclipse:



**Note** Oracle does not require and neither endorses or discourages the use of **Notepad++** when creating Snippets for Documaker Mobile use.

## **MICROSOFT'S EXPRESSION**

Expression is a commercial product available for free download from Microsoft®. This is a pure HTML and CSS editor with tuning for Microsoft's NET environments. It includes both preview and syntax helpers for HTML and CSS. There is no functionality within Expression for handling XSL or XML.



Note

Oracle does not require and neither endorses or discourages the use of **Microsoft's Expression** when creating Snippets for Documaker Mobile use.

## PACKAGING AND DEPLOYMENT OF MOBILE

When using Documaker Mobile, a single MRL (Assembly Line) may generate output in more than one layout. You may choose to have a single layout (shell or master snippet) for all forms in the Master Resource Library, or, more likely you may define a different master snippet per formset (KEY/KEY2). This is done using Documaker Studio to override the master snippet name associated with the Key 2 value in the Application Definition. Each resource also can be associated with a custom snippet but most often there will be no need to create custom definitions for any snippet types other than the master. Each master snippet will typically reference an XSLT definition when XML is used to create output, as needed per formset associated to the master snippet so that a unique mobile presentation can defined via the referenced XSLT for the formset (KEY1/KEY2).

#### REFERENCES

The master and individual object snippet files are stored in a location referenced by the MROLIB path definition. These files must be included in the deploy of the master resource library as part of the overall configuration. These files are NOT stored within the database tables for the MRL. Additionally, some of these files may also need to be made accessible to the web portal used to display/render the mobile output. Which means, any files referenced in mobile presentation output (e.g. CSS, WebFonts, Images, JavaScript frameworks, etc) need to be placed in a location that can be resolved to from the mobile output web server. The mobile output generated from Documaker should also be designed to reference external items that are managed and version controlled by the web portal, or its content server, being used to distribute the mobile document. This way the content management system (CMS) under the web portal will be responsible for making sure the correct versions of reference external items are delivered with the mobile content to consumers.

It is recommended to use existing resources which are already part of your web or mobile offering. If you need a style sheet to reference fonts used in Documaker for the mobile presentation, you can use Studio's Generate CSS option to have the Studio drop a text file that is really an HTML formatted file with embedded CSS:



	d for WEB presentation ired, and click Next.	on. Modity the file nan	ie that will be writ	ten to, if
۲ 🖓				
Option	S			
Locati	on of exported fonts:	C:\FAP\N	ISTRRES\FMRE	S\DEFLIB
Export	to file:	rel121.txt		
Export	type:	CSS		
Gen	erating a (	CSS File		••
				Ê

Some assembly will be required to pull the CSS rules you want to use from the file produced by Studio into your mobile presentation. Consider the file below as an example:



Typically the first two lines of HTML syntax and also the third line including the "body" rule can be removed from the file to form pure CSS. Also, the last line containing HTML syntax can be removed. The remaining lines are CSS rules where the font-size and position attributes can be adjusted or removed leaving font faces, styles and weight attributes such as this:

```
.TFID912 {font-family: "Pdf417","arial","times"; font-style:
normal; font-weight: normal;}
.TFID24004 {font-family: "Albany AMT","arial","times"; font-
style: normal; font-weight: normal;}
.TFID24104 {font-family: "Albany AMT","arial","times"; font-
style: normal; font-weight: bold;}
.TFID24204 {font-family: "Albany AMT","arial","times"; font-
style: italic; font-weight: normal;}
.TFID24304 {font-family: "Albany AMT","arial","times"; font-
style: italic; font-weight: bold;}
```

The CSS rule names listed by the Documaker Studio font export are matched to the values produced by the MRO for the "documaker.font.id" replacement tags by taking the documaker.font.id value and appending "TFID". The default snippets place the value of the documaker.font.id replacement tag in an "FNTID" attribute that is emitted for text snippets to form CSS style class name references that match the style rule names exported by the Documaker Studio's font CSS export function.

#### **MOBILIZING EXISTING FORMSETS**

Existing Documaker formsets contain publishing objects that are already named with a meaning that supports mapping and editing. However, for Documaker Mobile use, it is advisable for the Document Author and the Mobile Author to work together to identify other objects that must be named for reference within the mobile context. These items may be:

- Charts
- Images
- Tables
- TextAreas

Adding names to objects will allow the Mobile Author to layout the data mapping logic (XSLT or JavaScript/jQuery) to consistently locate needed page based document content in the assembled output produced by Documaker's Mobile Responsive Output (MRO) driver.

The default snippets delivered with Documaker mobile will work with any existing Documaker formset to produce a mobile presentation that helps to identify unnamed publishing objects, so they can be named for use in mobile output, and objects with names that are not unique, so they can be renamed for use in mobile output. For instance, here is the default mobile output for the mortgage life insurance example that is used earlier in this document:



When enabling existing documents for use in mobile, there is a step where the mobile design for the document is implemented in XSL that consumes the XML results produced by the MRO via the snippets to compose the document's mobile representation. To assist the process, an accelerator tool is provided that consumes the default XML results produced by the MRO via the default snippets and generates a starter XSL stylesheet. The starter XSL stylesheet has template syntax defined for each form that is represented in the default XML results. Syntax for accessing each named field, text, and bitmap element is found in the default XML results. The accelerator is an XSL stylesheet that produces an XSL stylesheet. It is named "xformstarter.xsl" and can be found in the resources directory under the MRO snippet directory.

To create a starter XSL stylesheet, run the xformstarter.xsl providing it the default XML results from the default snippets. Here is what the resulting starter XSL stylesheet looks like for the example mortgage life insurance documents from the enterprise MRL shipping with Documaker in JDeveloper:

Image: State in the state	S Oracle /Developer 11g Release 2 - Documaker N Elle Edit View Application Relactor Sea	bile.jws : meslik jpr : C:/dapl.matmesl.enterpins/involik/inesources/us/destus/ h Bavigate Build Bun Source Versigning Iools Window Help				
Backsonwart 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1           Dockster Net 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1         Chartest 1 <td< th=""><th></th><th>- A A B A B - P - P - A</th><th></th><th></th><th>9.1</th><th>earth</th></td<>		- A A B A B - P - P - A			9.1	earth
Document Net         ● Document         ● Do	Application Navigator #	test and 4		Compone	nt Palette X	
anyme       Implementation       Implementation       Implementation       Implementation         anyme       Implementation       Implementation       Implementation	Tel Documeter Mobile + Tel +	Ref Find 10 10 10 10 10		0		
De temple     Operative     Operative	Concerter Name - Concerter Na	Control         Control         Control           Image: Status         Image: Status         Image: Status         Image: Status           Image: Status         Image	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Q A page A p	All Sensers and All Sensers an	(29655), filmenfand ing (2965), filmenfand (2965), filmenfand (2966), filmenfand (2966), filmenfand (2966), filmenfand (2067), filmenfand (2067), filmenfand (2007),
	PRM: POLICY BENEFITS	Saret History 4 (				

Here is what the starter XSL stylesheet looks like in Eclipse:



This starter XSL stylesheet's structure triggers its transformation templates based on encountering named forms in the XML output:



This is a starter XML structure designed to accelerate the development of an XSL stylesheet for mobile output creation. It helps by providing XPATH syntax for processing the data hierarchy produced by the default snippets with syntax for locating Forms, Fields, Texts, Bitmaps, Tables and Charts in the MRO output. Once the XSL stylesheet has been created the next step is to load it with the HTML required for your mobile design as described in Step 6 of the *Delivering Mobile Output* topic in this document.

If the resulting starter XSL stylesheet is used without modification to transform the default snippet output into HTML, it produces a mobile document as seen in the image below. This image was produced for the example Mortgage Live Insurance documents from the enterprise MRL that ships with Documaker.



Appendix D

# Legal Notices

#### THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE NOTICES

This product includes software developed by Apache Software Foundation (http://www.apache.org/).

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHOR OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright © 2000-2009 The Apache Software Foundation. All rights reserved.

Apache Commons Math Copyright 2001-2008 The Apache Software Foundation

This product includes software translated from the odex Fortran routine developed by E. Hairer and G. Wanner and distributed under the following license:

Copyright (c) 2004, Ernst Hairer

Apache Commons Codec Copyright 2002-2009 The Apache Software Foundation Copyright (C) 2002 Kevin Atkinson (kevina@gnu.org)

Apache Commons Pool Copyright 2001-2011 The Apache Software Foundation

Apache Jakarta Commons Lang Copyright 2001-2007 The Apache Software Foundation

Apache Jakarta Commons FileUpload

Apache License Version 2.0, January 2004 (http://www.apache.org/licenses/LICENSE-2.0)

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE VISIGOTH SOFTWARE SOCIETY OR ITS CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.
Copyright 2002-2006 The Apache Software Foundation

Apache Commons CLI Copyright 2001-2009 The Apache Software Foundation

Apache Commons Collections Copyright 2001-2008 The Apache Software Foundation

Apache Commons Logging Copyright 2003-2013 The Apache Software Foundation

Barcode4J Copyright 2002-2010 Jeremias Märki Copyright 2005-2006 Dietmar Bürkle Portions of this software were contributed under section 5 of the Apache License. Contributors are listed under: (http://barcode4j.sourceforge.net/ contributors.html) Copyright 2002-2010 The Apache Software Foundation

This product includes software distributed via the Berkeley Software Distribution (BSD) and licensed for binary distribution under the Generic BSD license.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright © 2009, Berkeley Software Distribution (BSD)

This product includes software developed by the JDOM Project (http://www.jdom.org/).

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE JDOM AUTHORS OR THE PROJECT CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright (C) 2000-2004 Jason Hunter & Brett McLaughlin. All rights reserved.

This product includes software developed by the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT).

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright © 2009 MIT

This product includes software developed by Jean-loup Gailly and Mark Adler. This software is provided 'as-is', without any express or implied warranty. In no event will the authors be held liable for any damages arising from the use of this software. Copyright (c) 1995-2005 Jean-loup Gailly and Mark Adler

This software is based in part on the work of the Independent JPEG Group (http://www.ijg.org/ ).

This product includes software developed by the Dojo Foundation (http://dojotoolkit.org).

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES. INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES: LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright (c) 2005-2009, The Dojo Foundation. All rights reserved.

This product includes software developed by W3C.

Copyright © 2009 World Wide Web Consortium, (Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Institut National de Recherche en Informatique et en Automatique, Keio University). All Rights Reserved. (http://www.w3.org/Consortium/Legal/)

This product includes software developed by Mathew R. Miller (http:// www.bluecreststudios.com).

Copyright (c) 1999-2002 ComputerSmarts. All rights reserved.

This product includes software developed by Shaun Wilde and distributed via Code Project Open License (http://www.codeproject.com).

THIS WORK IS PROVIDED "AS IS", "WHERE IS" AND "AS AVAILABLE", WITHOUT ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OR GUARANTEES. YOU, THE USER, ASSUME ALL RISK IN ITS USE, INCLUDING COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT, PATENT INFRINGEMENT, SUITABILITY, ETC. AUTHOR

EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY WARRANTY OF TITLE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR THAT THE WORK (OR ANY PORTION THEREOF) IS CORRECT, USEFUL, BUG-FREE OR FREE OF VIRUSES. YOU MUST PASS THIS DISCLAIMER ON WHENEVER YOU DISTRIBUTE THE WORK OR DERIVATIVE WORKS.

This product includes software developed by Chris Maunder and distributed via Code Project Open License (http://www.codeproject.com).

THIS WORK IS PROVIDED "AS IS", "WHERE IS" AND "AS AVAILABLE", WITHOUT ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OR GUARANTEES. YOU, THE USER, ASSUME ALL RISK IN ITS USE, INCLUDING COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT, PATENT INFRINGEMENT, SUITABILITY, ETC. AUTHOR EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY WARRANTY OF TITLE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR THAT THE WORK (OR ANY PORTION THEREOF) IS CORRECT, USEFUL, BUG-FREE OR FREE OF VIRUSES. YOU MUST PASS THIS DISCLAIMER ON WHENEVER YOU DISTRIBUTE THE WORK OR DERIVATIVE WORKS.

THIS WORK IS PROVIDED "AS IS", "WHERE IS" AND "AS AVAILABLE", WITHOUT ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OR GUARANTEES. YOU, THE USER, ASSUME ALL RISK IN ITS USE, INCLUDING COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT, PATENT INFRINGEMENT, SUITABILITY, ETC. AUTHOR EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY WARRANTY OF TITLE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR THAT THE WORK (OR ANY PORTION THEREOF) IS CORRECT, USEFUL, BUG-FREE OR FREE OF VIRUSES. YOU MUST PASS THIS DISCLAIMER ON WHENEVER YOU DISTRIBUTE THE WORK OR DERIVATIVE WORKS.

This product includes software developed by Erwin Tratar. This source code and all accompanying material is copyright (c) 1998-1999 Erwin Tratar. All rights reserved. THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" WITHOUT EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY. USE IT AT YOUR OWN RISK! THE AUTHOR ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE/LOSS OF BUSINESS THAT THIS PRODUCT MAY CAUSE.

This product includes software developed by Sam Leffler of Silicon Graphics.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

IN NO EVENT SHALL SAM LEFFLER OR SILICON GRAPHICS BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER RESULTING FROM LOSS OF USE, DATA OR PROFITS, WHETHER OR NOT ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF DAMAGE, AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE

This product includes software developed by PJ Arends and distributed via Code Project Open License (http://www.codeproject.com).

## USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THIS SOFTWARE Copyright (c) 1988-1997 Sam Leffler Copyright (c) 1991-1997 Silicon Graphics, Inc.

This product includes software developed by Guy Eric Schalnat, Andreas Dilger, Glenn Randers-Pehrson (current maintainer), and others. (http://www.libpng.org)

The PNG Reference Library is supplied "AS IS". The Contributing Authors and Group 42, Inc. disclaim all warranties, expressed or implied, including, without limitation, the warranties of merchantability and of fitness for any purpose. The Contributing Authors and Group 42, Inc. assume no liability for direct, indirect, incidental, special, exemplary, or consequential damages, which may result from the use of the PNG Reference Library, even if advised of the possibility of such damage.

This product includes software components distributed by the Cryptix Foundation.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE CRYPTIX FOUNDATION LIMITED AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE CRYPTIX FOUNDATION LIMITED OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE

Copyright © 1995-2005 The Cryptix Foundation Limited. All rights reserved.

This product includes software components distributed by Sun Microsystems.

This software is provided "AS IS," without a warranty of any kind. ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED CONDITIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANYIMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, ARE HEREBY EXCLUDED. SUN AND ITS LICENSORS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES SUFFERED BY LICENSEE AS A RESULT OF USING, MODIFYING OR DISTRIBUTING THE SOFTWARE OR ITS DERIVATIVES. IN NO EVENT WILL SUN OR ITS LICENSORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOST REVENUE, PROFIT OR DATA, OR FOR DIRECT, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED AND REGARDLESS OF THE THEORY OF LIABILITY, ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE SOFTWARE, EVEN IF SUN HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

Copyright (c) 1998 Sun Microsystems, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

This product includes software components distributed by Dennis M. Sosnoski.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS'" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright © 2003-2007 Dennis M. Sosnoski. All Rights Reserved

It also includes materials licensed under Apache 1.1 and the following XPP3 license

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright © 2002 Extreme! Lab, Indiana University. All Rights Reserved

This product includes software components distributed by CodeProject. This software contains material that is © 1994-2005 The Ultimate Toolbox, all rights reserved.

This product includes software components distributed by Geir Landro. Copyright © 2001-2003 Geir Landro (drop@destroydrop.com) JavaScript Tree - www.destroydrop.com/hjavascripts/tree/version 0.96

This product includes software components distributed by the Hypersonic SQL Group.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS'" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE

Copyright © 1995-2000 by the Hypersonic SQL Group. All Rights Reserved

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF

This product includes software components distributed by the International Business Machines Corporation and others.

MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright (c) 1995-2009 International Business Machines Corporation and others. All rights reserved.

This product includes software components distributed by the University of Coimbra.

University of Coimbra distributes this software in the hope that it will be useful but DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO IT, including all implied warranties of MERCHANTABILITY or FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. In no event shall University of Coimbra be liable for any special, indirect or consequential damages (or any damages whatsoever) resulting from loss of use, data or profits, whether in an action of contract, negligence or other tortious action, arising out of or in connection with the use or performance of this software.

Copyright (c) 2000 University of Coimbra, Portugal. All Rights Reserved.

This product includes software components distributed by Steve Souza.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE AUTHOR AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright © 2002, Steve Souza (admin@jamonapi.com). All Rights Reserved.

This product includes software developed by the OpenSymphony Group (http://www.opensymphony.com/.)"

Copyright © 2001-2004 The OpenSymphony Group. All Rights Reserved.

This product includes software developed by Dave Gamble and distributed via

PANTONE (R) Colors displayed in the software application or in the user documentation may not match PANTONE-identified standards. Consult current PANTONE Color Publications for accurate color. PANTONE(R) and other Pantone LLC trademarks are the property of Pantone LLC. (C) Pantone LLC, 2011.

Pantone LLC is the copyright owner of color data and/or software which are licensed to Oracle to distribute for use only in combination with Oracle Documaker. PANTONE Color Data and/ or Software shall not be copied onto another disk or into memory unless part of the execution of Oracle Documaker.

SourceForge.net (http://sourceforge.net/projects/cjson/)

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THEAUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright (c) 2009 Dave Gamble

This product includes software developed by the Zxing Project.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright (c) 2013 Zxing Project (https://github.com/zxing/zxing)

This product includes software developed by the Wintertree software.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

The Sentry Spelling-Checker Engine Copyright (c) 1993 Wintertree (https://wintertree-software.com/dev/ssce/windows/index.html )

Freemarker Copyright (c) 2003 The Visigoth Software Society. All rights reserved.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE VISIGOTH SOFTWARE SOCIETY OR ITS CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE,DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

This software consists of voluntary contributions made by many individuals on behalf of the

Visigoth Software Society. For more information on the Visigoth Software Society, please see http://www.visigoths.org/

Copyright (c) 2000,2002,2003 INRIA, France Telecom (http://asm.ow2.org/) All rights reserved.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright© 2001-2016 ej-technologies GmbH (https://www.ej-technologies.com/products/ install4j/overview.html) All rights reserved.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

This component is distributed with the following third party components: (1) Third party components licensed under EPL v1.0; (2) JARGS (Stephen Purcell); JDOM (Brett McLaughlin & Jason Hunter); and (3) ORO (Apache Software Foundation). Please see EPL v1.0 and applicable components (#2072, 2686, 2074) for restrictions/requirements.

Copyright 2001-2005 (C) MetaStuff, Ltd.(http://www.dom4j.org ) All Rights Reserved.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY METASTUFF, LTD. AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL METASTUFF, LTD. OR ITS CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE)ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Little CMS Copyright (c) 1998-2011 (http://www.littlecms.com/) All Rights Reserved.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Marti Maria Saguer Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal in the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions: The above copyright notice and this permission notice shall be included in all copies or substantial portions of the Software.

Copyright (c) 2002-2007, Professor Benoit Macq

Copyright (c) 2001-2003, David Janssens

Copyright (c) 2002-2003, Yannick Verschueren

Copyright (c) 2003-2007, Francois-Olivier Devaux and Antonin Descampe

Copyright (c) 2005, Herve Drolon, FreeImage Team

All rights reserved.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THEIMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE COPYRIGHT OWNER OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Copyright (c) 2002-2007, Communications and Remote Sensing Laboratory, Universite catholique de Louvain (UCL), Belgium

Copyright (c) 2004-2013 QOS.ch (http://www.qos.ch/shop/index) All rights reserved.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal in the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions: The above copyright notice and this permission notice shall be included in all copies or substantial portions of the Software.

The Code Project Open License (CPOL) 1.02

Copyright © CodeProject, 1999-2016 (http://www.codeproject.com/info/cpol10.aspx) All Rights Reserved.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright (c) 1998, 1999, 2000 Thai Open Source Software Center Ltd and Clark Cooper

Copyright (c) 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 Expat maintainers (http://expat.sourceforge.net/)

All Rights Reserved.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright (c) 2002-2010 Atsuhiko Yamanaka, JCraft,Inc(http://www.jcraft.com/jsch/) All rights reserved.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL JCRAFT,INC. OR ANY CONTRIBUTORS TO

THIS SOFTWARE BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OFLIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

This product includes software developed by Christian Bach and distributed via (http://tablesorter.com/docs/)

All rights reserved.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright (c) 2007 Christian Bach

This product includes software developed by Dmitry Baranovskiy and distributed via (https://github.com/DmitryBaranovskiy)

All rights reserved.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright © 2008 Dmitry Baranovskiy.

Copyright (c) 2011 John Resig

This product includes software developed by John Resig and distributed via (http://jquery.com/) All rights reserved.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Copyright (c) Monotype Imaging, Inc (http://www.monotype.com/) All rights reserved.

Monotype®, Albany®, Andale®, Cumberland®, Thorndale®, MT®, WorldType® is a trademark of Monotype Imaging, Inc., registered in U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and certain other jurisdictions.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

## Index

A Adobe's Dreamweaver 57 Architecture Overview 12

B Best Practices 44

C Cascading Style Sheet 27 conventions 6 CSS 9

## D

databasetype Delivering Mobile Output dobe **10** Documaker Documaker Add-In Documaker Mobile Document Authoring Tools Document Authors doPublishFromFactory

I implementation 38

J JavaScript files, 9 M Mappings 40 Mobile Author 9 Mobile options 45 Mobile output 13 MRO 46

O Object Specific Snippets 16

P preface 5

S Single Page Architecture 10 Snippet Contents 15 Snippets 13

T task flow **49** template designers **9** 

W Web Standards **10** web user interface developer **9** 

## Χ

XSL 57 XSL style sheets 9